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On behalf of the Government of the Republic of Haiti, which unilaterally accepted the jurisdiction 

of the court of international justice on 4 October 1921 and has been a UN member since 26 June 

1945, the jurisdiction of the International Court of Justice is invoked in accordance with Article 

36(1) concerning the subject matter of UNSCR 940; UNSCR 1542; and UNSCR 1892.  

The Government of the Republic of Haiti recognizes as compulsory ipso facto and without special 

agreement, in relation to any other State accepting the same obligation, unconditionally, the 

jurisdiction of the international court of justice concerning: UNSCR 940; UNSCR 1542; UNSCR 

1892:  any question of international law concerning UNSCR 940; UNSCR 1542; UNSCR 1892:  

the existence of any fact which, if established, would constitute a breach of UNSCR 940; UNSCR 

1542; UNSCR 1892 and international obligations: the nature of the reparation to be made for the 

breach of UNSCR 940; UNSCR 1542; UNSCR 1892 and international obligations in conformity 

with Article 36(2) of the Statute of that Court.  

For the Record:  The origin of the animosity which Washington D.C. has towards Haiti stems from 

the diametrically opposite Revolutions which birthed each nation.  The American Revolution 1775 

to 1783 was actually a counter revolution fought by the American colonies, established under the 

Doctrine of Discovery, in order to keep enslaving the indigenous population and confiscating their 

land.  The abolishment of slavery in England and Scotland in June1772 with Lord Mansfield 

Somersets Case infuriated American colonists who'd rather revolt against the crown than see 

"slaves" they considered to be property freed causing great losses in income.  England and Haiti 

were both pressuring the American colonies to abolish Slavery and fought together against the 

American colonies during the American Revolution.  It was the American victory and its' legalized 

slave trade which helped to spark the Haitian Revolution.  The Haitian Revolution of 1791-1804 

was actually in response to the American Revolution and struck a mighty blow to the American 

colonies; plus the institution of slavery which they were built upon.  Despite the rhetoric of the 

American Constitution the execution of chattel slavery by the colonies begins from 1783 to 1854.  

The indigenous aboriginal autochnuous American population who fell under the jurisdiction of this 

newly formed union were reclassified with common vernacular of the day such as negroe, black, 

West Indian, and coloured.  They were coerced into joining or kidnapped, shipped, and utilized to 

build up the former American colonies and territories within the US until the Civil War without 



compensation.   The power dynamic at play between Washington DC and Haiti is the fact that 

Haiti defeated Spain, France, Britain, and Germany who were all supported monetarily by the 

American colonies but the US never openly declared war against Haiti out of fear of liberating 

their enslaved population.  The United States spent the modern day equivalent of a billion dollars 

at that time to make sure their slaves didn't find out about the Haitian Revolution in 1804.  Official 

U.S. documents stated at the time that no "black" person in the world must ever look up to Haiti 

today or future generations and see it as a symbol of pride for black people across the world because 

everyone is going to start to do wat they did; kicking us out all across the Caribbean and Africa.  

They began a campaign to demonize Haiti to the world with a negative portrayal of its' religion, 

culture, and government.  A policy which continues to this day.    

   

The US failed to recognize Haiti's sovereignty until 1862 and waited until 1915 to invade Haiti and 

occupy it until 1934.  The Haitian Army which was established during the 1915-1934 occupation 

of Haiti by USMC General Smedley Butler and the Marine Corps was actually a gendarmerie.  

This Haitian gendarmerie was left in place by Washington DC after its' occupation as 'an army to 

fight the people'.  This US led Haitian gendarmerie was loyal to, and answered directly to the US 

Secretary of State, and was used to terrorize the Haitian population.  Jean Claude Duvalier emerged 

out of this gendameier to take power in Haiti. This is the same gendarmerie President Aristede was 

all too ready to rid Haiti of and covertly being replaced with DynCorp Int. by Washington DC.  

According to Assistant Secretary of the Navy at the time Franklin Delano Roosevelt:  “From 1804 

to 1915 Haiti was a Sovereign State under a Republican form of Government. She won her 

independence from France in 1804. She was deprived of it in 1915 by the United States. Since then 

we have been in virtual control of her territory, our marines have been in military occupation of 

the country, and the former republic has been stripped by us of every vestige of her sovereignty.”  

  

UNSCR 940 issued on 31 July 1994 authorized the formation of a multinational force, under 

unified command and control, led by the US, to restore the first popularly elected president under 

free suffrage national elections in Haitian history President Jean Bertrand Aristede back to power 

and extend the mandate of the United Nations Mission in Haiti.  Acting under Chapter VII of the 

UN charter the presence of this multinational force on sovereign Haitian soil was facilitated by the 

Governor’s Island Agreement and Pact of New York.  These were the negotiations between then 

deposed President Aristede and LT. Raoul Cedras, mediated by the O.A.S. and U.N., for the return 

of Aristede to power.  One of the prerequisites for the return of President Jean Bertrand Aristide 

to power by Washington DC was the disbanding of the Forces Armées d’Haiti (FADH) which the 

exiled President Aristede readily accepted and replacing it with DynCorp International 1 of the 3 

preeminent private mercenary corporations in the world.  DynCorp Int is also a CIA proprietary 

organization, a business designed to provide a service wanted by the CIA which is secretly owned 

by the CIA .but disguised to appear in public as a private business.  On July 4 1994 Lt. General 

Cedras signed the Governor Island Accord which would restore President Aristide to power by 

October 30 1994.  The President of the United States at that time William J.  Clinton framed 

UNSCR 940 unilateral intervention “Uphold Democracy” as a foreign policy victory, and a return 

to “Democracy” in Haiti.  DynCorp Int was contracted to restructure the HNP into a paramilitary 

force and run the UN multi-national force and give technical support to the transitional government.    



1.  The unilateral intervention UNSCR 940 “Uphold  Democracy” code name Dragon's Blood 

was actually a clandestine Incursion of Haiti by DynCorp Int, Washington DC to utilize it as 

a trans-national shipment point for narcotics hence considered to be an illegal action under 

the principles of International Law in lieu of the fact:  

 G.  A major prerequisite of unilateral intervention UNSCR Resolution 940 Operation Uphold 

Democracy codename dragonsblood called for President Jean-Bertrand Aristide to dismantle the 

7,000 member Forces Armées d’Haiti (FADH) and replace it with DynCorp Int. which was 

contracted to give "technical advice" to Haiti; restructure the Haitian National Police (HNP) into a 

paramilitary force; and coordinate UN forces.  The U.S. National Security Act of 1947 established 

the Secretary of Defense and created the Department of the Air Force. It protected the Marine 

Corps as an independent service, under the Department of the Navy, prohibiting it from ever being 

absorbed into the Army. It also created the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) with both a strategic 

analysis and an operative clandestine activities side. It drew a bright line between foreign and 

domestic intelligence and assigning these realms, in effect, to the CIA and the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation (FBI), respectively. The CIA was designed to be an independent, central agency with 

no policymaking role and no law enforcement powers. DynCorp Int. was also created with the 

National Security Act as a clandestine operating division of the CIA by the Dulles brothers. Since 

its inception during the “Cold War” DynCorp Int. has operated as a covert mafia with government 

backing. It comprises the “Black Budget” and was used for “Black Ops” by the Dulles brothers to 

overthrow governments and make money all over the world for US corporations; hence the CIA 

nickname “the Company”.  The establishment of the fact that DynCorp Int. is a clandestine branch 

of the U.S. state department constitutes their role in Haiti as a breach of international law; violation 

of the Geneva Convention; Haiti's sovereignty; Principles of the Nuremberg Charter; etc.; etc...    

According to the Kerry Committee Report:  "since the days of “Papa Doc”, Francois Duvalier, 

Haiti’s government has' been notorious for its corruption. The Duvalier family and their associates 

profited enormously from the protection of many illegal enterprises, including narcotics 

trafficking"   While Haiti was still under the Duvalier regime, the drug trade in Haiti was the 

province of members of the Ton Ton Macoutes (his corrupt military guard).  A New York Times 

article dated June 4, 1986 US officials stated Ernst Bennett, father in law of President Jean Claude 

Duvalier, was a prominent figure in narcotics trafficking in Haiti and referred to as "the Godfather."  

"One official said he had been the "main local contact" for one of four or five rings of Colombian 

smugglers who were shipping cocaine through here to the US."  Ernst Bennett fled Haiti after the 

fall of the Duvalier regime to whereabouts unknown.  By 1985 the cocaine cartels began to seek 

transit points for the booming cocaine industry. A natural candidate was Haiti due to the direct 

transit route from the Colombian coast to Florida thru the Windward Passage  

In 1987, Senator John Kerry as Chairman of the Subcommittee on Narcotics, Terrorism and 

International Operations of the Senate Foreign Affairs Committee was entrusted with a major 

investigation, which focused on the links between the CIA and the drug trade, including the 

laundering of drug money to finance armed insurgencies.  A CIA cargo plane was shot down over 

Nicaragua in October 1986, quickly thrusting the Iran/Contra scandal into living rooms and 

courtrooms around the world.  “The Kerry Committee Report” published in 1989 exposed 

collusion between the CIA and drug traffickers during the late 1980s’ Iran Contra hearings.  While 

investigating the Iran/Contra scandal the Kerry Committee also developed detailed information on 



drug trafficking by the Forces Armées d’Haiti which led to the indictment in Miami in 1988, of Lt. 

Col. Jean Paul.    

According to the Kerry Committee Report:  "Following the departure of Baby “Doc” Duvalier ‘and 

the presidential elections of 1987, the Colombians took advantage of the complete breakdown of 

government institutions and began to move into the country in force.  They focused their efforts 

on corrupting key military officers who were in a position to assure that there would be no 

interference with, their operations. According to DEA intelligence, the number of Colombian 

narcotics traffickers residing in Haiti has been growing daily and the narcotics organizations are 

now using Haiti as a base of operations, storage site and staging, area. In addition, these 

organizations are buying up legitimate businesses to serve as front companies for their smuggling 

operations. Once having, gained access to local commerce, they then focus on corrupting, public 

officials to protect their interests.  The Subcommittee heard a detailed .account of the process the 

Colombians used to establish themselves in Haiti from Osvaldo Quintana, a Cuban America who 

became involved in drug smuggling from Haiti to' Miami. Quintana later testified about bus 

experience before a Federal grand jury in Miami. He explained that the Colombians established a 

working relationship with Colonel Jean-Claude Paul by working through a Haitian named Cardozo. 

The Colombians agreed to pay Colonel Paul, the commander of the Dessalines Barracks, for 

protection and for the use of runway on his ranch for cocaine flights.  Command of the Dessalines 

Barracks allowed Colonel Paul to play a pivotal role in Haitian politics because this force is the 

elite unit responsible for the protection of the Presidential Palace.  Colonel Paul's influence was 

very much in evidence during the 1987 election, when much of the violence was attributed to 

soldiers, and security officials known as Ton tons Macoute acting under his direction." According 

to New York Times article July 23 1994 2 Haiti Leaders are focus of drug inquiry:  A memo, from 

Deputy Assistant Attorney General Mark M. Richard, stated that "the U.S. Attorney's Office in 

Miami has established that the Haitian military have been closely involved in the facilitation of 

drug trafficking since the early 1980's."  Federal investigators and lawyers familiar with the 

investigation said they had heard or read statements, given in recent weeks by two former 

Colombian cocaine cartel traffickers that described Lt. General Cedras as a participant in a 1987 

cocaine deal.  The witnesses described a fiesta in November 1987 thrown at the ranch of the 

cocaine kingpin Pablo Escobar outside Medellin, Colombia organized by a consortium of cartels 

to celebrate the cartels' successful opening of a new trade route, through Haiti into the United 

States. By November 1987, they said, the cartels had completed shipments of 30,000 kilograms, 

or about 66,000 pounds, of cocaine through Haiti. The cocaine was transshipped from the Haitian 

capital, Port-au-Prince, to Miami, mostly on commercial flights.  Mr. Arroyave described arriving 

at the fiesta and noticing a number of black foreigners, an unusual sight at a gathering of members 

of the Colombian cartels. He said he was introduced to Michel Francois and Raoul Cedras, among 

other senior Haitian military officials. He said General Cedras spoke Spanish with a Dominican 

accent and served as interpreter for the other Haitians.  Both witnesses said the Haitians at the party 

were paid $10 million for their help in the transshipment of 30,000 kilograms of cocaine through 

Haiti. After the party ended the next night, the Haitians left on a plane owned by the cocaine 

traffickers, both witnesses said.  

The Medellin Cartel was the most profitable cartel in Columbian history.  By 1989 they had 20% 

of all US 100 dollar bills stored in Columbian banks.  The Medellin Cartel revolutionized the 

cocaine trade and how it was transported.  They also participated in bombings, smuggling, and 



assassinations.  The Infamous Pablo Escobar, head of the Medellin Cartel, made the Forbes List in 

1989 as the 7th richest man in the world.  At his height Pablo Escobar brought in 22 billion a year 

thru the Medellin Cartel.  He once offered to pay Columbia's national debt of 10 billion dollars as 

a deal to prevent extradition to the US and reported net worth was 30 billion at time of death.  At 

its' peak Medellin cartel smuggled 15 tons of coke every day and had direct control of 80% of the 

global cocaine market.  The Medellin Cartel was implicated in the Iran/Contra scandal and was 

doing business with the Washington DC Banking Cartel thru clandestine efforts of the Company 

in the international illicit drug trade.  In 1986 the CIA set up and provided funding for the National 

Intelligence Service (SIN) in Haiti under the guise of fighting narcotics. Yet, according to a U.S. 

embassy official cited by the New York Times, SIN "never produced drug intelligence" but rather 

used the $500,000 to $1 million they received annually from the United States "for political reasons, 

against whatever group they wanted to gather information on." A Haitian official concurred, saying 

SIN was "heavily involved in spying on so-called subversive groups; they were doing nothing but 

political repression; they targeted Fanmi-Lavalas supporters who were for change."  It is evident 

that Sin which was established by the CIA was being dissuaded from fighting narcotics is due to 

the fact that the Company was involved in the Haitian drug trade already.  According the Kerry 

Committee Report:  "In 1987, the Colombian cartels established a major, and secure base of 

operations in Haiti, turning that country into another significant transit point for cocaine coming 

into the United States. The cartels bought protection from the upper ranks of the Haitian military 

which, in turn established a distribution network in the United States. This network is characterized 

by a high level of violence associated with its operations."    

After the fall of Duvalier a military coup in 1989 brought Lieutenant General Prosper Avril to 

power. Under U.S. pressure Avril, the former finance chief under the 30-year Duvalier family 

dictatorship, fired 140 officers suspected of drug trafficking.  According to a witness before 

Senator John Kerry’s subcommittee, Lt. Gen. Avril was in fact a major player in Haiti’s role as a 

transit point in the cocaine trade.  In 1990 Jean Bertrand Aristide won the Haitian presidency thru 

grassroots organization of Fanmi-Lavalas, a genuine Poor Peoples Political movement.  On 

September 30, 1991, a military cocaine-coup under the leadership of Lieutenant General Raoul  

Cedras, Commander-in-Chief of the military forces of Haiti Forces Armées d’Haiti (FADH), 

overthrew the government of President Jean-Bertrand Aristide.  Members of the Forces Armées 

d’Haiti who participated in the September 30, 1991 Coup de Tat by Lt. General Cedras which 

overthrew President Aristide were on on the CIA's payroll, as part of an anti-drug intelligence unit 

set up by SIN in 1986.  Many of them had their U.S. assets frozen, and are prevented from entering 

the US due to their role in human rights violations; torture; murder of political opponents.   

The Front for the Advancement and Progress of Haiti (FRAPH), a part of the military junta of Lt 

Gen Raoul Cedras, was linked to USDIA and CIA.  According to a 1996 UN Human Rights 

Commission report, FRAPH had been supported by the CIA.  It was created/sponsored by a group 

of senior army officers on CIA payroll.  Declassified records now make it clear that US state 

department agencies like the CIA/USDIA helped to create and fund the paramilitary group called 

FRAPH. Under the military dictatorship of Lt Gen Raoul Cedras, the narcotics trade was protected 

by the military Junta, which in turn was supported by the CIA.  While addressing the UN during 

his exile, in a dramatic move, President Aristide told the diplomats that the military Junta of Lt. 

General Cedras had to yield the power that was to end Haiti’s role in the drug trade.  The cocaine 

trade financed by Colombia’s Medellin Cartel had exploded in Haiti following the cocaine-coups 



against him. President Aristide told the UN diplomats that each year Haiti is the transit point for 

nearly 50 tons of cocaine worth more than a billion dollars, providing Haiti’s military rulers with 

$200 million in profits.  Jack Blum, who was Kerry’s Special Counsel, points to the complicity of 

US officials in a 1996 statement to the US Senate Select Committee on Intelligence on Drug 

Trafficking and the Contra War:  “In Haiti intelligence “sources” of ours in the Haitian military 

had turned their facilities over to the drug cartels. Instead of putting pressure on the rotten 

leadership of the military, we defended them. We held our noses and looked the other way as they 

and their criminal friends in the United States distributed cocaine in Miami, Philadelphia and New,  

York.“This unilateral intervention was under the guise, yet was not intended to “Uphold 

Democracy”.  On the contrary, it was carried out to prevent a popular insurrection against the 

military Junta of Lt. General Cedras and its neoliberal cohorts by Fanmi-Lavalas and its supporters 

for the return of the Aristide administration.  The United States didn't even prosecute Lt. Gen. 

Raoul Cedras for the criminal acts conducted during his military junta.  Instead they gave the 

Haitian military strongman a million dollar-plus "golden parachute" to resign and go into exile.  

During the coup and since, the US stated department agency USAID sponsored "democracy 

enhancement" did its' job.  

Ever since the earthquake of 2010 and theft of the Haitian Relief Funds there is a growing concern 

among the Haitian diaspora and the International community that Washington DC has not been 

actually providing humanitarian assistance or aid to Haiti.  An international responsibility to 

protect Haiti's sovereignty exists not only because it was the Haitian revolution which helped to 

end the enslavement of humanity within the American hemisphere but also because of the 

indigenous origins of most of their ancestors.  The unilateral intervention ‘Uphold Democracy’ 

entered Haiti on 19 September 1994 with a force of 6,000 United Nations troops and 15,000 US 

troops (only 120 of whom speak Creole, the language that most Haitians speak) at the cost of $5 

billion to the American taxpayer.  The unilateral intervention ousted the military government and 

restored Aristide to power on Oct. 15, 1994.  The Forces Armées d’Haiti (FADH) which consists 

of 7,000 men were disbanded and Washington DC contracted US military contractor DynCorp 

International which is part of the clandestine operating division of the CIA to provide “technical 

advice” in restructuring the Haitian National Police (HNP).  UNSCR 940 “Uphold  Democracy” 

code name Dragon's Blood was actually a clandestine incursion of Haiti.  The Clinton/CIA/Haiti 

drug connection was a pathway for hard drugs and cocaine to enter the U.S. thru Haiti with the 

support of drug kingpin Pablo Escobar.    

The US led unilateral intervention UNSCR 940 “Uphold  Democracy” code name Dragon's Blood 

which returned President Aristede to power was actually a clandestine incursion by Washington 

DC to take over the cocaine trade, which the gendemiere they had established in 1915, was 

developing in Haiti.  The pre requisite that Haiti dismantled the military was readily accepted by 

Aristede due to the terror they had waged on the Haitian people on behalf of Washington DC.  The 

fact that DynCorp Int was contracted to replace this gyndemiere and run Haiti not only violates 

International Law but also created a narco-state in Haiti.  This is a grand scale version of the covert 

narcotics smuggling operation in Mena, Ark. which Governor William J Clinton and the Arkansas 

Development and Finance Authority (ADFA) were implicated in.  With the Forces Armées d’Haiti 

(FADH) gone the Company took over the transshipment point. Pablo Escobar and the Medellin 

cartel continued to supply all the cocaine which came thru Haiti with early estimates of over $20 

million a month being trafficked while Washington DC turned a blind eye and exported death to 



American youth.  The crack epidemic in black communities on the east coast was fueled by the 

Haiti-Florida connection.  Pablo Escobar would have wet dreams about the narco state the Clintons 

and the Company established in Haiti.  The infamous Pablo Escobar ran for and was elected “as 

an alternate member of Colombia’s Congress” in 1982.   He was forced to resign in 1984, after 

two years because he was accused of direct involvement in drug production and smuggling to the 

United States.  The Reagan administration who wanted extradition for their "War on Drugs" 

pressured the Colombian president, Luis Carlos Garlan, to prevent Escobar from sitting in the 

parliament.  The hypocrisy of the "War on Drugs" is that at the same time Washington DC claimed 

to be fighting this war they were also profiting from it in a myriad of ways.  This utilization of 

Haiti as a narco-state follows the pattern of colonization of the US state dept. in Haiti. for instance 

the jacked the banks...Haiti was under American military rule from 1915 to 1934. Major General 

Smedley D. Butler said he hunted the Haitians “like pigs” and made Haiti “a decent place for the 

National City Bank boys to collect revenue in.” American troops practiced “indiscriminate killing 

of natives” while the American press called Haitians “a horde of naked niggers” in need of 

“energetic Anglo-Saxon influence”....America rewrote Haiti’s laws so that Americans could buy 

up land. They sent 40% of Haiti’s income to American and French banks to pay back debts.   

  

  

2.  UNSCR 1542 issued on 30 April 2004 established The United Nations Stabilization Mission 

in Haiti (MINUSTAH) with a mandate to support the Transitional Government of Haiti with 

a military component of up to 6,700 U.N. soldiers.  These actions taken by MINUSTAH under 

the guise of a Chapter VII mission are a violation of International Law in lieu of the fact:  

A. On February 29, 2004, a multinational force led by the U.S., Canada, and France came to 

quell dissent in Haiti following a U.S.-backed regime change. U.S. marines apprehended President 

Aristide and flew him out of the country and into exile after a phone call from General Colin 

Powell telling him "it's over".  President Jean-Bertrand Aristide is on record stating that he was 

“kidnapped” aboard a U.S. military plane, and dumped in the Central African Republic.  This 

blatant forced removal of a sitting president by a foreign nation was illegal and a break with 

democratic order in Haiti.  UNSCR 1542 failed to consider what role the US played funding and 

supporting the coup d’état of President Aristede.  The U.S. state department funded the country’s 

anti-Aristide opposition of “Democratic Platform of Civil Society Organizations and Opposition 

Political Parties” which destabilized the Fanmi-Lavalas government.  The Democratic 

Convergence (DC) and the Coalition of 184 Civic Institutions contain a laundry list of Haitian 

NGOs funded by USAID and/or the International Republican Institute (IRI).  Both the  

“Démocratique Convergence” and the “Coalition of 184 Civic Institutions” have links to the FLRN 

(former FRAPH death squadron’s leader) Guy Philippe.  The FLRN/FRAPH are Haitian 

paramilitary groups who receive funding from the Washington DC thru these “civic organizations”.  

Washington DC, Duvalierists and Haitian oligarchy utilize these “civic organizations” for the 

purpose of killing members of Fanmi-Lavalas and committing a coup deta against President 

Aristide.   Guy Philippe...connected to drug activities by dea.... and his “rebels” succeeded, with 

the help of U.S. Special Forces, in overthrowing President Aristide on Feb. 29, 2004.  The game 

is low-intensity warfare, a mix of policies long familiar to observers of U.S. policy toward 

‘undesirable’ regimes in Latin America and elsewhere. The mix includes disinformation 

campaigns in the media; pressure on international institutions and other governments to weaken 



their support of the ‘target’ government; and overt and covert support for rightist opposition groups, 

including those prepared to attempt a violent overthrow.  

B. There is a division of tasks between the CIA and the NED. While the CIA provides covert 

support to armed paramilitary rebel groups and death squadrons, the NED and its four constituent 

organizations finance “civilian” political parties like ‘The Coalition of 184 Civic Institutions 

Organization’ (G-184) and non-governmental organizations with a view to instituting American 

“democracy” around the World.  America imperialism rules by means of banana republics which 

they control by means of kakistocracies around the world.  Once a conflict was created DynCorp 

Int., which is part of the clandestine operating division of the CIA, was brought in thru the U.N. to 

train and turn the domestic police force into a terrorist organization; human trafficking; and organ 

harvesting.  After exiling President Aristede to Africa, the U.S. went on to criminalize the whole 

Fanmi-Lavalas political party, the political base of president Aristede.  The Fanmi-Lavalas Party 

developed from the grass roots Lavalas Movement which was founded by Jean-Bertrand Aristede.  

The term Lavalas means flood, the grass roots movement consisted of priests, students, peasant 

groups, union activists, and most sectors of Haitian society which were opposed to the Duvalierists 

and their Washington DC cohorts.  The Lavalas Party is based on social democratic principles with 

an emphasis on investment in people, education, and health care as their priorties.  They refused 

IMF austerity measures and seek a fair distribution of wealth and the use of Haiti’s Natural 

resources in a way that's beneficial to Haitians.  It was reported in the New York Times at the time 

that the terminology used in a cable sent by US officials briefing the coup government, both the 

U.S. Embassy and Haitian elite referred to the Lavalas resistance fighters as “bandits” or “gangs,”.  

The terms "Bandits” and “Gangs” were often used as a code word for Fanmi-Lavalas supporters 

by US officials and Haitians on their payrolls.  Yvonne Neptune, Jocelerme Privert, Father Gerard 

Jean-Juste, Annette Auguste, Rene Civil, Emmanuel Cantave, Maryse Narcisse, Lovinsky Pierre-

Antoine, Wilson Mesilien, etc., were all prominent members of the Fanmi Lavalas Party who were 

targeted during the foreign occupation of Haiti.  

  

C. Fanmi-Lavalas supporters literally became political prisoners in their own country under 

MINUSTUH.  In a now infamous case, Minustah mounted an assault into Cité Soleil, Haiti’s 

largest slum on July 6, 2005, at 3:00 A.M., 1,440 Brazilian and Jordanian soldiers sealed off Cité 

Soleil with 41 armored personnel carriers and attacked.  Helicopters dropped grenades and U.N. 

troops entered the poor Cite Soleil neighborhood and fired more than 22,000 bullets 

indiscriminately; spraying houses with gunfire; killing and wounding many men, women and 

children; leaving untold dozens of civilian casualties.  Cité Soleil residents told an October 2005 

fact-finding delegation for the International Tribunal on Haiti that U.N. tanks whisked away many 

bodies, which were never returned. Human rights groups called the carnage a massacre.  According 

to declassified cables sent that day from the U.S. Embassy in Port-au-Prince to the State 

Department, UN troops fired 22,000 shots for seven hours in a neighborhood where most people 

live in structures made of flimsy sheet metal.  An untold amount of Haitians were killed by the 

time it was over, including a number of children.  According to MINUSTUH the target of this raid 

was Dread Wilme a prominent Fanmi-Lavalas member who was helping to fight the illegal 

occupation of Haiti.  MINUSTAH was complicit in the oppression of Haiti's poor majority with 

the Transitional Government and Haiti's Duvalier elite.  On December 22, 2006, for example, 

Minustah troops staged another raid on Cité Soleil in which, according to the Associated Press, at 



least five people were killed.  Under the transitional government these murderous raids by 

DynCorp Int., MINUSTUH, and HNP on areas with Fanmi-Lavalas supporters became the norm.  

MINUSTUH also participated in fraud elections, replaced ballot boxes, gerry meandering, and 

raping of women.  In principle, there is a distinction between personnel from the International 

United Nations Mission for the Stabilization of Haiti (MINUSTAH) and the men and women of 

Haitian law enforcement, because the latter presumably all reside in Haiti and are Haitian nationals 

who have never renounced their citizenship.  In practice, however, the UN force and the DynCorp  

Int trained “Haitian National Police” force have become quite indistinguishable in behavior.   

According to John Stockwell former CIA officer:  "they don't meet the death squads on the streets 

where they're actually chopping up people or laying them down on the street and run trucks over 

their heads.  Now they meet them besides the swimming pool of the villas and itz a sophisticated, 

civil kind of relationship".The U.S. media coverage of the MINUSTUH/HNP raids of Cite Soliel 

was inadequate in both quantity and in presenting a balanced description of events. As death squads 

and the police murdered Fanmi-Lavalas supporters and others, the international corporate media 

did not run one editorial condemning the rampant political repression and violence it had accused 

the Aristide administration of committing.  

  

D. MINUSTAH was established by Security Council resolution 1542 of 30 April 2004 to 

support the Transitional Government of Haiti.  The UN Office of Internal Oversight Services, 

according to an internal audit of UN Police operations in MINUSTAH; the overall results relating 

to the effective management of the UN police operations were initially assessed as partially 

satisfactory.  However, due to the lack of progress by MINUSTUH towards enhancing the capacity 

of the Haitian National Police to conduct criminal investigations, the final results were assessed as 

unsatisfactory.  Their final overall rating was unsatisfactory as of August 24, 2012.  The HNP, 

MINUSTUH, and UN police were all being trained by DynCorp Int.in Haiti.   

  

E. The UN dispatched MINUSTAH on a Chapter VII mission to Haiti which violates Chapter 

I Art. 2 of their charter and International Law.  MINUSTUH's presence in Haiti is based on the 

proposition that violence in Haiti is a threat to the international community.  Yet since Haiti's 

independence it's been vice versa.  MINISTUH's mandate has been renewed every year since its' 

inception, despite the fact that Haiti has a much lower rate of violent crimes (8.2 per 100,000 

people) than many of its Caribbean neighbors such as Jamaica, which does not have a U.N. mission 

(54.9), or Brazil heading up the U.N. mission (26.4).  Haiti has the lowest crime rate of the 

Caribbean and it has been concluded that the Haitian situation is not "a threat or breach of the 

international peace”.  After the forced removal of President Aristide by the US military, 

MINUSTUH was sent in to quell the dissenting Fanmi-Lavalas party.   The UNSCR 1542 failed 

to examine the role the US played in creating exigent circumstances for the removal of President 

Aristede.  Why are the UN soldiers shooting to kill if it’s on a Chapter VII mission in Haiti?  The 

U.N. lacks legal jurisdiction over its peacekeeping force, and instead relies on member states to 

prosecute crimes by their own troops.  It is a human rights violation for UN soldiers to target and 

kill Fanmi-Lavalas Party members indiscriminately because they are genuine poor peoples 

political movement.  MINUSTUH's presence in Haiti is based on the proposition that violence in 

Haiti is a threat to the international community, yet since Haiti's independence it's been vice versa.    

  



F. Saturday morning. After having assumed command of the UN military mission less than 

four months ago, the body of Brazilian officer Lt. Gen. Urano Teixeira da Matta Bacellar was 

found sprawled out on the balcony of the Hotel Montana, the apparent victim of a self-inflicted 

gunshot wound to the head.  According to several sources in the Haitian press, Bacellar had 

participated in a tense meeting with the president of Haiti's Chamber of Commerce, Dr. Reginald 

Boulos, and Group 184 leader Andy Apaid the night before.  Bacellar had been opposing US and 

Duvalierists Haitian Mafia, policy which was forcing him to murder Fanmi-Lavalas supporters.  

According to Reuters "The general had insisted that his job was to defend the Haitian constitution, 

but not to fight crime," the Independent of 9 January reported.  On the night of September 21 2003 

Amiot Metayer, one of the popular heroes of the resistance against both the Duvalier and Cedras 

dictatorships, was pumped full of bullets and thrown in a ditch. His murder apparently served the 

interests of those who would benefit from edging Haiti closer to the brink of outright civil war. 

The murder further destabilized Haiti as the opposition began spreading the rumor that President 

Aristide was behind the killing. Infiltrated, confused and demoralized, the population of Gonaives 

was initially manipulated into turning against Fanmi-Lavalas, the very movement they had 

sacrificed so much blood and so many lives to build.    

G. The Western media continues to play a major role in the destabilization of Haiti.  Their 

orchestrated negative portrayal of President Aristide and the criminalization of the Fanmi-Lavalas 

Party and false portrayal legitimize the repressive tactics and actions of the US in Haiti.   Less 

overtly imperialistic under the U.N./US banner is the role DynCorp Int., who manages the U.S. 

Federal Bureau of Prisons, has played in the criminalization of the Fanmi-Lavalas Party.   Under 

the transitional government of Haiti DynCorp Int. trained MINUSTAH and the HNP to combat 

the criminalized Fanmi-Lavalas members who fought the illegal occupation of Haiti.  A majority 

of Fanmi-Lavalas members were imprisoned and DynCorp Int is in the process of building more 

jails in Haiti to profit off the suffering of the people.  All Fanmi-Lavalas supporters became 

political prisoners in their own country under UNSCR 1542.  Between 2004 and 2006 during 

foreign occupation by DynCorp Int. and MINUSTAH’s multinational troops headed by Brazil; 

from 14,000 to 20,000 Haitians were slaughtered with total impunity.  These were mostly 

FanmiLavalas supporters who opposed the illegal occupation and regime change.  Not only is 

MINUSTAH directly responsible for the murder and killing of Fanmi-Lavalas political party 

members, but DynCorp Int. is also responsible for the training of the Haitian National Police (HNP) 

into a para- military force to kill Fanmi-Lavalas party members.  DynCorp Int is in the process of 

building more jails in Haiti to profit off the suffering of the people.  

  

H. 2008, US State Department Contract in Haiti and Liberia for $7 million dollars illustrates 

DynCorp’s involvement in the HNP. DynCorp provided training for at least 444 HNP officers. In 

2013, DynCorp is awarded yet another contract in Haiti for training and providing support to police 

worth $48.6 million dollars. The contract is issued by the US State Department through the 

Criminal Justice Program Support (CJPS) initiative.  Haiti is one of the few countries where 

DynCorp Int. has contracts from the USG to train and support the Haitian National Police force 

(HNP) and is also a key player in providing international officers to serve in the U.N. Stabilization 

Mission in Haiti (MINUSTAH). In addition, DynCorp affiliates provide corrections advisors for 

training and support of prison workers.  In keeping with their training by DynCorp Int. the HNP 

degenerated into a para-military force which targeted Fanmi-Lavalas members.  More than 600 



members of the HNP have been dismissed from the force for crimes that include rape, drug 

trafficking, and murder, the most recent purge being in June 2014.  

  

  

4.  The United Nations Security Council Resolution 1892 issued on 13 October 2009 which 

made William J. Clinton UN Special Envoy to Haiti 6 months before the Haitian earthquake 

and Executor of the IHRC Funds in lieu of:  

 A.   Haiti received its' own version of 9/11 on January 12, 2010 when it was hit with a 7.0 

Earthquake which killed over 300,000 people and left 1.5 million homeless.  This tragic event 

would go on to propel Haiti back onto the world stage with the United States acting as its' 

benefactor; coming to the aid and rescue of Haiti.  Then president Barack Obama would go on to 

hold a press conference flanked by former US presidents George Bush and Bill Clinton in which 

all types of promises were made and people across the world were told to send money in order aid 

and rebuild Haiti. Due to the prestige of Haiti's now infamous revolution and the dire straits it's 

been held in since they collected record amounts of aid.  The whole world responded to the tune 

of 14 billion dollars which was raised for Haiti relief efforts over a period of 5 years.  3 years later 

the money would disappear and Haiti would be left standing all alone with nothing to show for all 

the pain and misery this tragic event caused.  On January 15 the UN Secretary General Ban 

KiMoon and Bill Clinton, the UN special envoy to Haiti, launched an appeal at a meeting with 

diplomats in New York for nearly $1.5 billion in earthquake relief which was almost three times 

the world body's initial request, that never made it to Haiti.  How did the UN know Haiti would 

need a Special Envoy a major catastrophe 6 months before it happened?      

  

WikiLeaks launched a searchable archive for over 30 thousand emails & email attachments sent to 

and from Hillary Clinton's private email server while she was Secretary of State. The 50,547 pages 

of documents span from 30 June 2010 to 12 August 2014. Approximately 7,570 of the documents 

were sent by Hillary Clinton. The emails were made available in the form of thousands of PDFs 

by the US State Department as a result of a Freedom of Information Act request. The final PDFs 

were made available on March 3, 2017.  Wiki-leaks is important because it exposed the hypocrisy 

behind the humanitarian efforts of Washington DC in Haiti.  A study of wiki-leaks shows that the 

aftermath of the Haitian earthquake was used as a pretext for the US and its' Western allies to profit 

off the misery of the Haitian people.  The Interim Haiti Recovery Commission (I.H.R.C.) was set 

up by UN Special Envoy William J Clinton in the aftermath of the Haitian Earthquake of January 

12, 2010.  According to the U.S. State Department the IHRC is co-chaired by the Government of 

Haiti and the UN Special Envoy to Haiti but the Haitian Parliament was coerced and forced into 

voting to dissolve itself by the Clintons in order to make way for the IHRC.  It was co-chaired 

instead by Clinton and Laurent Lamothe (a former Haitian prime minister embroiled in the 

Petrocaribe scandal) and allowed a group of rich donors to run the country for 18 months in a pay 

for play scheme.  Slightly more than three months after the earthquake, on April 21, 2010 the IHRC 

was inaugurated.  UNSCR 1892 mandated that all UN member states, international and 

nongovernmental organizations had to coordinate with the Interim Haiti Reconstruction 

Commission (IHRC) in order to access the Haitian Relief Funds but in practice this mandate was 

never followed and left the Haitian government completely out of the equation.  As the 

reconstruction money poured in, the IHRC became increasingly arrogant and opaque. Haitian 



ministers and elected officials were blocked from IHRC meetings because they were “not on the 

list.” In addition, they even gave themselves the power to grant titles which led to them taking land 

without compensating people.  The IHRC displaced Haitian farmers off of nearly 600 acres (240 

hectares) of land in order to construct what is now the Caracol Industrial Park, without 

compensation.  The IHRC requested aid in the Name of Haiti yet never coordinated with the 

Haitian government at all.  The IHRC is estimated to have collected $5.3 billion over two years 

and $9.9 billion over three years totaling to a whopping 14 billion after 5 years, without 

reconstructing much of anything.    

  

The IHRC ended up operating as a pay to play unelected government, where political participation 

was based on money, 14 billion in Haitian Relief Funds never made it to the people, which is a sad 

referendum of how leaders of supposedly “progressive democratic parties” actually run countries.  

All major projects, those worth 10 million U.S. dollars or more, had be approved by the IHRC 

Board of Directors.  Breaking with the IHRC charter, William J Clinton and Max Bellerive gained 

the right of final approval over all major construction projects in Haiti.  According to a leaked 

Wiki-leaks email of government messages a senior aide to Secretary of State Hillary Clinton was 

coordinating with a Clinton Foundation official to identify FOB’s (Friends of Bill) in order to 

prioritize them for contracts in Haiti with the IHRC.  This isn't the first time the Clintons have 

prioritized (Friends of Bill) in pay to play politics.  During his tenure as Governor of Arkansas 

William J Clinton was implicated in a money laundering scheme associated with the Iran/Contra 

scandal.  Arkansas legislators voted on a Bill creating the Arkansas Development Finance 

Authority (ADFA) to provide low interest bond loans to churches, schools and colleges.  Instead 

ADFA, represented by the Rose Law Firm where Hillary Clinton worked as a lawyer and lobbyist, 

made low interest bond loans strictly to (Friends of Bill).  The ADFA was at the center of financial 

dealings in which large amounts of money could be moved around easily and discreetly with no 

detection.  

  

According to Clinton associate Larry Nichols who worked at ADFA a 100 million dollars a month 

came in thru Mena, Ark which was laundered by the ADFA; the ADFA was part of the Clinton 

Political machine and made loans for campaign contributions; ADFA dealt with bond structuring 

and applications; they moved money to Florida, Georgia, BCCI, City Corps in New York sent it 

overseas; Dan Lasater would get bonds, became broker and transfer money back to ADFA; they 

never sold any bonds; money left ADFA went into one of the banks for a specific bond loan and 

they would zero it out; every loan made at ADFA Governor Clinton signed off on; pay for play 

low interest bond loan went to Friends Of Bill (FOB); Governor Clinton used cover of state agency 

to launder money.  Because ADFA was not subject to legislative oversight- being solely within the 

purview of the governor’s office- and because of the loose strictures upon the trustee bank, it also 

opened the gate for questionable, possibly illicit financial dealings.  

As IRS man Bill Duncan explained, theoretically, bonds could be issued to provide a loan to a 

company involved in laundering drug profits. That loan represented clean money. The loan could 

in turn be paid back with drug profits, slowly over time and in small increments. In this way drug 

money could be successfully filtered into the legitimate financial system. If the company in 

question did nothing more with the loan than redeposit it into its bank account, then the company 

had lost nothing but it had gained clean money. Thus, in effect, ADFA could serve as a washing 



machine – dirty money could be cleaned simply by passing through its system. Duncan suggested 

that it would also be possible for ADFA clients never to repay a loan and for the money simply to 

be circulated through the trustee’s investment end of the arrangement.  Bill Duncan and Russell 

Welch were targeted by Gov Clinton, who hampered their investigation into Mena, Ark and refused 

to prosecute.  CIA agent Terry Reed, familiar with the commercial affairs of Mena, quit once he 

discovered drugs were involved in the operations being run and asserts that large sums of drug 

money were being laundered through leading Arkansas bond brokers, an allegation also being 

considered by a federal investigator just as his researches were abruptly terminated.  Thru the 

Arkansas Development and Finance Authority (ADFA) the Clintons laundered money from the 

Mena, Ark operation.  Hillary Clinton worked at the Rose Law Firm which was the lobbyist for 

ADFA.Every case that linked the Clintons to criminal activities were effectively shut down by 

various government agencies.  

  

The 7.1 billion dollars that went missing from the Haitian Disaster Relief Funds was no accident.  

After decades of keeping the Haitian government despotic, there is no way the US would let the 

Haitian government receive that kind of aid.  Special Envoy Bill Clinton utilized the IHRC to 

launder 7.1 billion of the Haitian Disaster Relief funds like he utilized the ADFA to launder drug 

money from Mena, Ark..  Eric Braverman was the CEO of the Clinton Foundation at the time of 

the Haitian earthquake and helped set up the IHRC with William J Clinton as a mechanism to 

funnel 7.1 billion of disaster relief funds thru USAID and the World Bank out of Haiti.  Bob 

Zoellick was the president of the World Bank at the time, the same man involved in the Haiti 1985 

Farm Bill.  The US and Clintons have a long history of utilizing implicit coercive policies to 

destabilize Haiti.  From the 1996 Farm Bill which destroyed Haiti’s rice farming to the 1.3 million 

pigs killed due to destructive policies of USAID and OAS.  Haiti Wiki-leaks helped reveal 

Washington DC for the frauds which they truly are.  William J. Clinton, the UN special envoy to 

Haiti stated to members of the Haitian government that they couldn't prosecute him for the 

misappropriated Relief Funds due to diplomatic unity.  Diplomats are immune except in 

circumstances when in connection with any role they may play as executor or heir to an estate 

being distributed in the host country.  Only sovereign nations can grant diplomatic immunity, as 

UN Special Envoy and Executor of the IHRC diplomatic immunity doesn't protect him from being 

prosecuted for the funds not distributed during Haiti Relief efforts.  It is the duty of the UN, who 

made William J. Clinton special envoy to prosecute and return these misappropriated funds to the 

republic of Haiti.  Diplomatic immunity is not intended to serve as a license for persons to flout 

the law; the UN must not ignore or condone the commission of crimes which violate International 

Law.  

  

The Clinton Foundation wasn’t operating lawfully as a tax-exempt organization in Haiti.  

Wikileaks revealed that it was originally formed to build a presidential library for Bill Clinton.  It 

began work in Haiti in 2003 but it didn’t have clearance from NY authorities to operate 

internationally, which is why no official audit was conducted for several years.  It failed to fill out 

its' 990’s from 1998-2007 aggregating their government grants.  Not authorized by the IRS to 

engage in activities such as fighting HIV/AIDS, disaster relief, and climate change internationally, 

which is more fruitful than fundraising.  It hasn’t complied with NY laws which clearly require the 

identity and amounts of all government grants (domestic and foreign) be reported.  The Clinton 



Foundation is a massive operating and solicitation fraud; in order to solicit in most states and 

nations it had to register making truthful declarations.  The registration for the Clinton Foundation 

shows that it was raising money for a presidential library based in Little Rock, Ark.  

  

B. Washington DC has authorized hundreds of billions of dollars to Haiti thru institutions like 

the International Monetary Fund and the World Bank since their 1915 occupation, yet has failed 

to raise the standard of living in Haiti one iota.  The reason Washington DC is able to steal the 14 

billion under the guise of Humanitarian assistance after a 7.1 Richter scale earthquake which killed 

300,000 and left 1.5 million homeless is because they own Haiti already.  Haiti's politicians, 

bankers and oligarchy control the Haitian government and economy as overseers for Washington 

DC.  They're super rich, pay no taxes, and provide no sustainable investments beneficial to Haitian 

society.  As long as they live well, they have their mansions, their yachts, their limousines, they 

go to New York to the UN and have their suites at the Waldorf-Astoria and that's all they care 

about.  Forsaking the Haitian ideology after being purchased with fiat currency by the IMF/World 

Bank Haitian politician follow their lead pilfering government funds as the people suffer as in the 

Petrocaribe scandal.  The inefficiency of the Haitian government is what allowed the earthquake 

in Haiti and the disastrous response to it.  That’s why SOUTHCOM was "coincidentally" in Haiti 

running Complex Command and Control Emergency Relief Drills before the earthquake.    

The malfeasance of Washington DC; IHRC; US state department agencies; US NGOs; the United 

Nations; foreign church groups; and international banking institutions are exposed thru the lens of 

the available 307 wiki-leaks of U.S. government cables/emails on Haiti released on March 16, 

2016.  Scarcely a month into the reconstruction process, it was being described in a diplomatic 

cable as a ‘gold rush’ for government contractors and aid groups.” On February 1, the US 

Ambassador to Haiti, Kenneth Merten, cheerfully titled a section of his situation report, “THE 

GOLD RUSH IS ON!”.  One of the most disastrous policies of the Duvalier era was their use of 

U.S. non-government organizations to fill in what their government could not or would not do for 

the Haitian people which had "elected them".  Ever since their departure these US state funded 

NGO's Have basically been governing Haiti. leading to a what still exists today.  It was these same 

NGO's, which have a heavy presence in Haiti till this day, who were so ineffective after the 2010 

earthquake.    

The IHRC mishandling of Haitian Relief Funds didn't happen because of UN Special Envoy 

William J Clinton alone.  The IHRC was co-chaired by former Haitian prime minister Laurent 

Lamothe and besides the FOB; the Haitian bourgeoisie; corrupt Haitian politicians benefitted from 

IHRC contracts also.  Ever since the Duvalier Regime the politicians in Haiti have been funded by 

Washington DC and become addicted to the international welfare of United Nations funding.  98% 

of the Haiti Disaster Relief Funds raised stayed within the IHRC and never reached the people.  

WikiLeaks revelation of a Clinton official statement that Haiti is "open for business" was a veiled 

term for foreign companies to exploit Haiti.  The vast majority of Washington DC contracts went 

to NGO's and American firms operating in Haiti.  At least 500,000 Haitians are still living in relief 

camps as a new five star hotel Marriott hotel was constructed for foreigners funded by the IHRC.  

Almost no cash ever went to or was intended to go to Haitians or the Haitian government to assist 

the people.  The Center for Economic and Policy Research (CEPR) analyzed the $1.15 billion 

pledged after the January 2010 quake to Haiti and found that the “vast majority” of the money it 



could follow went straight to U.S. companies or organizations, more than half in the Washington 

area alone.”  The economic elites made billions upon billions before the $9 billion the US 

“bighearted humanitarians” would add to their coffers from laundering earthquake relief dollars 

largely back to US groups.  During the Duvalier regime the Medellin Cartel began using Haiti as 

transshipment point for cocaine.  Even Pablo Escobar built social infrastructure for the people of 

Columbia where 10% of people own 90% of the land.  Washington DC and the Haitian government 

have made billions thru the utilization of Haiti as a transshipment point for cocaine while they kept 

the Haitian population in a state of misery.    

C. Wiki Leaks continued to expose corruption when they revealed evidence of sex trafficking 

in Haiti which is why Haitian people were vying for their release.  NYPD Chief of Detectives, 

Robert Boyce, said the Clinton emails contained evidence of sex crimes, child exploitation, money 

laundering, pay to play, etc. in Haiti.  The IHRC was connected to child sex trafficking in Haiti on 

January 29, 2010 when Laura Silsby was caught and arrested for trying to kidnap 33 kids in Haiti.  

Silsby is the former director of “The New Life Children’s Refuge” and the leader of a group of 10 

U.S. Baptist missionaries who attempted to transport Haitian children without that government's 

approval, out of the earthquake ravaged nation.  She was eventually convicted and released for 

time served due to the influence of Hillary Clinton.  Declassified WikiLeaks of government emails 

revealed that Clinton staffer Huma Abedin was “constantly forwarding emails to Hillary Clinton” 

about Laura Silsby’s situation.  The lawyer who pretended to defend her in court was Jorge Puello 

who is wanted by police in at least four countries in connection with charges of sex trafficking of 

girls and women; making counterfeit documents; and violating parole.  These child sex traffickers 

are connected to (NPH) Friends of Haiti who run 760 orphanages in Haiti thru Max Maccoby who 

is on the Board of Directors. Ezilio Danto former Fanmi-Lavalas lawyer prosecuted the project 

Pierre-Toussaint and its founder Douglas Perlitz for sexually abusing boys in their care. There is 

evidence of child sex trafficking started thru US stated dept. funded NGO's and orphanages in 

Haiti.  

  

  

5.  UNSCR 940 issued on 31 July 1994 is responsible for the incursion of DynCorp Int. into  

Haiti and providing technical and logistical support to HAARP and SOUTHCOMM on 

January 12, 2010 in Haiti in lieu of:  

  

President Hugo Chavez of Venezuela cited a report from Russia’s Northern Fleet which stated that 

the US used the High Frequency Active Aurora Research Program (HAARP) to cause the 

earthquake which struck Haiti on January 12, 2010 killed 300,000.  According to the report, the 

U.S. Navy made a "mistake" with a secret “earthquake weapon” and the result was the Haitian 

earthquake. The Russians report believes the intended target was Iran. “Though Russian Northern 

Fleets’ report was not confirmed by official sources, the comments of President Hugo Chavez 

attracted special attention in some US and Russian media outlets including Fox news and Russia 

Today,” states Pragmatic Witness blog. The Russian Report also stated that Moscow has also been 

accused of possessing and utilizing such weapons.  The High Frequency Active Aurora Research 

Program (HAARP) is a U.S. government atmospheric research facility in Alaska.  The program is 

based on an invention and research of world renowned scientist Nikola Tesla.  

  



What makes the allegations of President Chavez valid is that U.S. Southern Command 

SOUTHCOM was "coincidentally" in Haiti on January 11 2010 running Complex Command and 

Control Emergency Relief Drills, (one day before 7.0 Earthquake).  DynCorp Int., which is part of 

the clandestine operating division of the CIA, was coordinating the efforts of SOUTHCOMM on 

these Relief Drills.  On Monday, Jean Demay, Defense Information Systems Agency (DISA) 

technical manager for the agency's Transnational Information Sharing Cooperation Project 

(TISCP), happened to be at the headquarters of the U.S. Southern Command in Miami preparing 

for a test of the system in a scenario that involved providing relief to Haiti in the wake of a 

hurricane.   Coincidentally after the 7.1 earthquake hit Haiti on Tuesday, Jean Demay said 

SOUTHCOM decided to go live with the system. On Wednesday, DISA opened up its All Partners 

Access Network (APAN), supported by the TISCP, to any organization supporting Haiti relief 

efforts.  SOUTHCOM assumed control of the Haiti’s largest commercial airport, yet most planes 

with humanitarian assistance from; CARICOM; the Caribbean Community; Médecins Sans 

Frontieres; Brazil; France; Italy; and even the U.S. Red Cross; trying to land were turned away by 

them.  According to the report, it is "more than likely" that the U.S. Navy had "full knowledge" of 

the catastrophic damage that testing HAARP’s earthquake capabilities could potentially have on 

Haiti and had pre-positioned its Deputy Commander of the Southern Command, General P.K. 

Keen, on the island to oversee aid work if needed. The U.S. killed well over a million Iraqis in 

their "War on Terror", why not 300,000 Haitians.  The U.S. Southern Command   began   its   work   

of   "humanitarian   invasion" by sending at least 10,000 soldiers and contractors, to control Haitian 

territory, rather than the UN, after the devastating “experimental earthquake." Since the earthquake 

the country's largest commercial airport has resembled a military base, with more than 100 armed 

forces and UN flights passing through each day.  The U.S. has clearly exploited the earthquake to 

send the military to the stricken island nation.  They brazenly occupied Haiti without consulting 

the UN or the OAS (Organization of American States).  This isn't the first time, the precedent was 

set on Bikini Island, Washington DC has used a Weapon of Mass Destruction on an unsuspecting 

public.  Haiti didn't gain it's independence to be reduce to being Guinea Pigs for Washington DC.  

During my service in the USMC, I was trained on the use of WMD's and non-violent weapons, 

and believe they're utilizing HAARP to intimidate the Haitian population into submission, not only 

was it used on January 12, 2010 but also; October 6, 2018; October 17, 2018 to keep the people 

from overthrowing their oppressive government.  ,  

  

The Russian Northern Fleet Report indicates that the earthquake which devastated Haiti was clearly 

the result of HAARP as a test by the U.S. Navy of the earthquake capabilities of this weapon of 

mass destruction.  HARRP may have been utilized by Washington DC covertly to create Hurricane 

Katrina; Hurricane Matthew; Hurricane Maria. The report drew up a diagram of linear succession 

in relation to earthquakes reported to have occurred by chance to the same depth in Venezuela and 

Honduras. It can be observed that there is a correlation between seismic activity and the ionosphere, 

through the control of Radio Frequencies Induced by force fields, which is a HAARP feature.  The 

HAARP project can also create anomalies in the climate causing floods, droughts and hurricanes 

and may have also been the cause of Hurricane Mathew.  Since the end of the decade of the 70's 

in the last century, the U.S. "advanced a lot" in the state of its earthquake weapons and, according 

to these reports they now use equipment with; Pulse, Plasma and Tesla Electromagnetic and Sonic 

technology; together with longitudinal EM wave interferometers (LWI) technology; also known 

as “Tesla howitzers” to create “shock wave bombs”. LWI waves can effortlessly pass through the 



ocean and earth. Experts claim LWI waves can in fact pass through the earth and emerge on the 

other side.  Leading-edge scientists are describing global weather as not only air pressure and 

thermal systems, but also as an electrical system.  The United States and Russia have possessed 

this technology for decades.  HAARP is actually based on the research and invention of Nikolai 

Tesla called the “Tesla Coil”.  All of Nikolai Teslas’s inventions and research were confiscated by 

the C.I.A. after his death.  Tesla would rather the US have his inventions because he didn’t want 

the Nazis (who were after them) to get their hands on his inventions and research to weaponize 

them but the US did that anyway.  An interesting fact is that Tesla invented a machine which could 

provide free Wi-Fi electricity to the world.  It's a dire state of civilization when a government won't 

develop an invention which could give free energy to the world but develops one which a weapon 

of mass destruction.  

  

  

7.  The United Nations Security Council Resolution 1892 is responsible for the IHRC-Clinton 

fraudulent election and return to power of the Duvalier Party in Haiti and use of Petrocaribe 

money to purchase a narcotics transshipment point in lieu of:  

In June 1985, the Haitian legislature unanimously adopted a new law requiring that every political 

party must recognize President-for-Life Jean-Claude Duvalier as the supreme arbiter of the nation, 

outlawing the Christian Democrats, and granting the government the right to suspend the rights of 

any party without reasons. The law, which was ratified by a majority of 99.98%, impressed his 

handlers in Washington D.C..  It was "an encouraging step forward," the US Ambassador informed 

his guests at a July 4, 1985 celebration.  The Reagan Administration certified to Congress that 

"democratic development" was progressing, so that military and economic aid could continue to 

flow into Haiti and mainly into the pockets of Baby Doc and his entourage. This is why the public 

claims of the U.S. government and media that the Haitian government is corrupt ring hollow 

because it is the kakistocracy which it puts in place; supports; and uses to exploit nations under the 

guise of democracy.  It is actually the American government which is as corrupt today as it was 

when its colonies first established itself on American soil.  The American "Founding Fathers" were 

actually land speculators figuring out how to steal land from the indigenous American population.  

America has continued its pattern of colonization thru the Doctrine of Discovery with policies like 

the Monroe Doctrine which has had a disastrous effect on the Americas.  

The Reagan Administration also informed Congress that the human rights situation was improving 

under Duvalier, the man who just declared himself President-for-Life.  The Duvalier regime was 

just a continuation of kakistocracies established in Haiti by the U.S. since their 1915 military 

occupation of the island but it was one of the most brutal.  The U.S. backed Duvalier government 

is estimated to have murdered between 20,000 and 50,000 Haitians during the time period of 

19571971.  Duvalier created a private military force called the Ton Ton Macoutes whose sole 

purpose was to get rid the country of all opposition and terrorize the Haitian people.  The Ton Ton 

Macouts swelled to 15,000 by the mid 80's and helped Duvalier rule by means of constant 

repressive violence.  .  The self-proclaimed leaders of the Free World supporting imperialistic 

despotic regimes globally thru "democracy".   The Democrat-controlled House Foreign Affairs 

Committee had given its approval in advance, calling on the Administration "to maintain friendly 

relations with Duvalier's non-Communist government."  Despite what the average American 



citizen believes Washington DC is always willing to provide "aid" to a government suppressing a 

population fighting for authentic representation of the people.  

 The excuse Washington DC used is that they were fearful of Haiti falling under the influence of 

communism after their successful liberation and revolution of Cuba by Fidel Castro and Che 

Guevara on July 26, 1959.  What's interesting is the fact that they were willing to look the other 

way when Cuba Meyer Lansky was trying to turn it into a gambling and narco state under Cuban 

president Batista.  Batista left Cuba with 300 million n left for Dominican....François Papa Doc 

Duvalier learned everything he knew from Washington, dc because he was trained by their military 

schools. While poverty among his people remained the most widespread of any country in the 

Western Hemisphere.  Jean-Claude Duvalier allegedly stole the equivalent of 1.7% to 4.5% of 

Haitian GDP for every year he was in power.  The only other two other kleptocrats to come as 

close a percentage of GDP were Ferdinand Marcos (Philippines) and Sani Abacha (Nigeria).  

In Haiti the Duvalier dictatorships left a terrible legacy: 1% of the population owns 48% of the 

wealth of the country; the illiteracy rate is about 60%; he waged a war on educated Haitians, an 

estimated 80% of Haitians employed in professional fields fled Haiti under this oppressive regime 

headed by a terrorist.  The ramifications of this fleeing to technology and research, education and 

health care cannot be over-estimated. Many poor Haitians attempted to leave the country, 

overcrowding boats that transported them to the United States.  The US refused them entry and 

refugee status which is ironic because they were fleeing turmoil in Haiti which was created by the 

US.  It is the normal pattern of US colonial policy towards Haiti and other nations of color.  In the 

public arena they smile and tout of bringing democracy to "save" or "civilize" nations of color; 

subliminally referring to them as savages, while exploiting these nations in a myriad of ways.  

During his campaign against President Bush, President Clinton criticized his inhumane policy of 

not accepting Haitian refugees (whom he referred to as the boat people), yet during his 

administration he did the same thing.  It's ironic that Haiti who brought freedom to a colonized 

world is now being colonized by a democratized world.  A lot of smart and true Haitians were 

force to flee leaving a void which was filled by corrupt Haitians on the US payroll ready do the 

bidding of their employers in keeping the nation from progressing.  The reason for this US policy 

towards Haiti is due to the fact that most of the revolts in the US during institutional of slavery 

were started by Haitians.    

After the fall of the Duvalier regime, the Haitian State became politically and economically 

dominated by a small mulatto elite (approximately 5%), former members of the Duvalier Party, 

and the military gyndemiere left in place since the 1915 U.S. occupation.   Whereas the politically 

marginalized majority of black peoples (approximately 95%) began to form the foundation of what 

would later to become known as the Fanmi-Lavalas Party.  A rural priest in a small church, Father 

Jean-Bertrand Aristide, said that "we're glad Duvalier is gone" but "what we now have is 

Duvalierism without Duvalier."  The phrase "Duvalierism without Duvalier” is a popular phrase 

in Haiti and represents the policy the US has been pushing in Haiti since the overthrow of this evil 

dictator.  Many of the problems faced by Haiti today can be traced back to the monstrous policies 

of the Duvalier regimes. One of the most disastrous was their use of U.S. non-government 

organizations to fill in what their government could not or would not do for the Haitian people who 

had "elected them"; leading to a heavy presence that still exists today.  These state dept. funded  

NGO's formed a network which actually ran Haiti and was so ineffective after the 2010 earthquake.  



  

"Duvalierism without Duvalier" was in effect when the IHRC-Clintons elected Michel Martelly.  

The IHRC was to hand over governance to the Parliament and a newly elected president when their 

18 months were done.  It seems that the Clintons were determined to handpick the winner.  The 

wiki-leaks of secret government cables reveal that Hillary Clinton chose Michel Martelly for a 

legislative coup de tat after the IHRC was done exploiting Haiti.  When Michel Martelly lost in 

the first round of elections, Hillary Clinton had him replace candidate Jude Celestine on the ballot 

in order for him to make it to the second round.  The evidence is overwhelming that the OAS, with 

the complicity of Secretary of State Hillary Clinton and her chief of staff Cheryl Mills, changed 

the votes in 2010 to place Michel Martelly into the runoff.   According to leaked wiki-leaks 

government emails, after the Nov. 28 first round, the U.S. government revoked and eventually 

returned visas of President Préval loyalists, as part of its pressure tactics to get him to replace his 

party’s candidate, Jude Célestin, from the runoff in favor of singer Michel Martelly.  Secretary of 

State Hillary Clinton flew to Port-au-Prince in January 2011 to pressure Préval to supplant Célestin 

with Martelly. That was when Préval understood he had no way out and capitulated to the change 

Clinton wanted and replaced his candidate with Michel Martelly on the ballot.  As usual, Préval 

complied, although the CEP members, constitutionally the “final arbiter” of any Haitian election, 

never validated the US altered election results.  After a second-round contest with exceptionally 

low turnout, Martelly was named the winner over Manigat.  The Haitian government eventually 

requested that a mission from the Organization of American States (OAS) come to Haiti to analyze 

the results. The mission, despite not conducting a recount or any statistical test, recommended 

replacing Célestin in the runoff with Michel Martelly.  

  

Pressure began building on the Haitian government to accept the recommendations. Government 

officials had their U.S. visas revoked and U.S. Ambassador to the U.N. Susan Rice (Boule) even 

went so far as to threaten to cut aid, even though the country was still recovering from the 

devastating earthquake earlier in the year.  Secretary of State Clinton “pressured then-President 

René Préval with the loss of U.S. and international aid unless the election results were changed to 

fit the OAS’s recommendation,” which was, in fact, her recommendation. This was how former  

President Michel Martelly came to power.  He was declared the winner of the second round in 

March 2011, with a record low voter turnout of 22 per cent, less than half the previous 2006 

elections.  The presidency of Michel Martelly marked the return of the Duvalier Party to power in 

Haiti.  Due to the lack of CEP validation these elections were deemed fraudulent.  It wasn't even 

clear if Martelly should have been allowed to run due to his citizenship status.  

The reason the Clintons wanted Michel “Sweet Micky” Martelly elected so badly was because he 

was a former member of the Duvalier regime and they wanted a return of the Duvalier Party to 

Haiti.  Michel Martelly is a popular musician who shared the nickname “Sweet Mickey” with the 

late army lieutenant colonel, police chief, and Fort Bragg graduate, Joseph Michel “Sweet Mickey” 

Francois, a subsequently indicted drug smuggler and one of the main authors of the bloody first 

U.S-backed regime change (Sept. 30, 1991) that overthrew President Jean-Bertrand Aristide.  He 

was also an associate of Guy Phillipe leader of the para-military group which overthrew Aristide 

on Feb. 29, 2004 and convicted drug trafficker.  "We have been on the wrong road for the past 25 

years" Martelly declared after being elected, placing Haiti's wrong turn, in his opinion, at about the 

time of the U.S. backed Duvalier dictatorship's fall and the emergence of the democratic nationalist 



movement that became known as Lavalas.  The Duvalierists revile Fanmi Lavalas cause they refuse 

to be US puppets.  The most notable feature of the Haitian Constitution of 1987 was Article 291 

which prohibited Duvalierists from seeking public office for the next ten years.  But that Article 

has never been fully implemented due to the role the US state dept. plays in Haiti.    

During his tenure as president Michel Martely continued the policies of "Duvalierism without 

Duvalier".  He basically turned the Haitian Treasury over to the U.S..  He also started a remittance 

fee program which was designed to exploit Haitian diaspora.  The central bank of Haiti began 

charging 1.50 for each wire transfer and 5 cents per min on phone calls to the country.  This 

remittance program went into effect in June 2011 and the money has been accumulating since then 

with no accountability.  President Michel Martely also pilfered the Petrocaribe program with his 

administration having nothing to show for it.  Petrocaribe was a program created in 2004 by under 

the sponsorship of Venezuelan President Hugo Chavez.  Under the current PetroCaribe terms, Haiti 

pays up front 40% to 70% of the value of the petroleum products it imports from Venezuela such 

as asphalt, 91 and 95 octane gas, heavy fuel oil (mazout), diesel and kerosene with the remaining 

60% to 30% paid over 25 years, with a two year grace period, at an annual interest rate of 1%.    

President Jovenel Moïse was put in power in 2017 by ex-president Michel Martelly via a fraudulent 

election thru his Tet Kale party, endorsed by the US/UN/NGO occupational forces, establishing a 

Narco-State in Haiti.  The election of Moises Jean, a friend of Martelly and member of the Duvalier 

Haitian Tèt Kale Party, is not valid because the election was filled with fraud.  What makes this 

situation worse is the fact that the Haitian government paid for this election yet there was still 

massive fraud, and they had an unwanted candidate forced down their throats.  A reliable Brazilian 

exit poll suggests that Moise Jean didn’t win, coming in fourth, not first, with just 6 percent of the 

vote, yet it was reported he won with 90% of vote in the November 20 elections.  This was done 

because the US backed transitional government doesn’t want a Fanmi-Lavalas led administration.  

He is a macoute-bourgeois and has been recently accused of laundering drug money for the 

Clintons in Haiti, which is why he had to address DEA charges before taking office.    

Protests erupted in Haiti on July 6, 2018 when fuel prices were raised by 50% as part of a plan 

endorsed by the IMF to modernize the economy.  President Jovenel Moïse was forced to fly out of 

the country to get instructions from Washington DC.  The government canceled the scheduled 

increase amid nationwide protests that left several people dead and prompted airlines to cancel 

flights.  In the aftermath, Haiti’s Prime Minister Jack Guy Lafontaine and his cabinet were forced 

to resign.  Haitians, angry over years of unchecked corruption and lack of development, began 

asking where the Petrocaribe money went and are still protesting to this day.  Following the 2010 

Haitian earthquake, Venezuela forgave 295 million in debt Haiti had accrued since joining the 

program in 2006.  In terms of numbers, Petrocaribe doubled Haiti’s budget and funds available for 

investments, although they are loans. Today, the debt in this account is at $3.4 billion [USD] after 

just 5 years. In a nation which had before only brought in tax revenues of $325 million [USD] per 

year, where $3.4 billion has disappeared to is a common concern of political observers.  A Haitian 

Senate Committee report determined 1.7 billion of no-bid contracts given by the government 

between 2008-2016 which all used Petrocaribe money.  Money was paid out yet no projects were 

completed.  All of this augurs woe for Cuban and Venezuelan projects in Haiti, and possibly for 

the Petrocaribe agreement, despite its tremendous and evident contribution to the Haitian people's 

welfare.  



Jovenel Moïse was indicted for money laundering just days before he took the oath as president of 

Haiti, yet he was granted immunity for 5 years and allowed to take office by the US justice 

department.   It is just the continuation of a permanent kakistocracy which Washington DC has 

placed on Haiti.  Jovenel Moise’s major asset is a banana plantation and export business called 

Agritrans S.A., which was launched in 2013 through a loan of $27 million and grant of 1,000 acres 

from the President Michel Martelly administration, out of the National Treasury. This transaction 

was made possible by the Petrocaribe agreement whose funds were used to build this banana 

plantation.  Moise, a known drug trafficker uses this banana plantation, which has an airstrip, as a 

front for a transshipment point for narcotics reminiscent of Mena, Ark.. President Jovenel Moïse 

is guilty of illegally using Petrocaribe funds to purchase his banana plantation and expand his illicit 

drug empire in Haiti.   He was kept in power for the utilization of Haiti as a covert drug 

transshipment point the Clintons and Washington DC.  Mena, Arkansas was as a large scale 

clandestine drug smuggling operation connected to the Iran-Contra hearings.  The president of the 

Haitian senate accused the Clintons of drug running and fraud after IHRC debacle.  Washington 

dc has created a narco state in Haiti which is worse than Cuba before Fidel Castro cleaned it up.  

The Duvalier/Tet Kale party is full of drug dealers and the Clintons are using them to build their 

nacre state.  Under the Clinton-Martelly led presidency Haiti became influenced directly by 

wellconnected drug dealers. The Parliament is heavily ruled by active gun and drug traffickers. 

The legal system is the hands of gangsters and the wealthy but repugnant billionaires of the 

Caribbean.  Guy Philippe, Hervey Four and, Your Latitude, Joseph Lambert, Senator Willet Joseph 

is all participants of the Haitian government and connected to drug activities within Haiti and US 

by the DEA but never fully prosecuted.  Washington DC's utilization of Haiti as a trans-shipment 

point has turned it into a country where illicit drug activities dominate the economy, define political 

choices and determine the fate of foreign interventions.  

The Washington DC Banking Cartel, which plays a behind the scenes role in the formulation of 

US foreign policy, thru Council of Foreign Relations(CFLR) has a vested interest in retaining Haiti 

as a transshipment point.  The installment of a reliable “narco-democracy” in Haiti effectively 

protects their transshipment routes.  The U.S. backed thug parliament and Duvalier/Tet Kale 

regime geared towards the protection of this multibillion dollar narcotics transshipment trade 

through Haiti, from production sites in Colombia, Peru and Bolivia.  Michel Martelly during a 

preinauguration meeting with Colombia's Foreign Minister, stated it's their development plan he 

will emulate, referring to the cocoa they're known for.  It is estimated that Haiti is now responsible 

for 14 percent of all the cocaine entering the United States, representing billions of dollars of 

revenue for the C.I.A. and US financial institutions which launder vast amounts of dirty money. 

The global trade in narcotics is estimated to be worth in the order of 500 billion dollars. In the early 

1990's a white house report documented more than 250 tons of coke were smuggled into the US 

through Florida in a year, primarily from Haiti, while 100 tons flowed thru the southwest border.  

By the end of the decade 200 tons came thru both boundaries and in subsequent years the amount 

of cocaine coming thru Haiti fell, accounting for less than 10% smuggled into the US.  

According to biographer Roger Morris William J Clinton worked as CIA asset posing as a Rhodes 

Scholar in England as part of Operation Chaos.  While William J. Clinton was governor an airstrip 

in Mena, Arkansas became popular during the Iran/Contra scandal.  It was utilized by USMC Lt 

Col Oliver North, during the Reagan presidency, for a large scale clandestine drug smuggling 

operation for the CIA.  According to CIA agent Terry Reed author of "Compromised-Clinton, 



Bush and the CIA" stated he was approached by MC Lt Col North to work on the Mena Project in 

the fight against communism.  CIA Agent Terry Reed was brought on to train Nicaraguan soldiers 

to pilot small planes for the Contras fight against communism.  He also worked with Felix 

Rodriguez who was the Contra link between the CIA and VP Bush's office.  Reed worked with 

Barry Seal on the project who piloted planes on flights thru Mena, Ark for the CIA.  Barry Seal’s 

first contact with the CIA came in the 1960s while he served as a pilot for the US Army’s Special 

Forces division.  In 1982 CIA asset Barry Seal under pressure from Louisiana cops relocates his 

drug smuggling operation to Mena, Ark.  By 1986 journalists Evans-Pritchard described Arkansas 

as a "major point for the transshipment of drugs" and "perilously close to becoming a 'narco-

republic' a sort of mini Columbia within the borders of US...there is an epidemic  of cocaine 

contaminating the political establishment from top to bottom...with parties (attended by Gov 

Clinton) at which cocaine is served like hors d'oeuvres and sex was rampant".  

Retired DEA agent Celerino "Cele" Castillo testified in 1998 before The House Permanent Select 

Committee on Intelligence connecting the Reagan administration to illegal narcotrafficking of 

cocaine yet no grand jury ever heard any evidence of narcotrafficking and the statute of limitations 

has expired.  He had years of experience in fighting drug trafficking in Central and South America, 

Castillo was familiar with the operations at Ilopango; he was stationed El Salvador in 1985 and 

reported the use of the airfield to fly illegal drugs into the US.  Castillo took off the gloves and 

named George H. W. Bush as the "kingpin" for the narcotrafficking of cocaine into the US. Castillo 

wrote that the Boland Amendments curtailed funding to the Contras and the Vice President George 

H. W. Bush "entered into an agreement with the Columbian drug cartels to exchange guns for 

drugs. The proceeds of the drug sales in turn were used to secretly fund the Contras."  Former Head 

of the CIA Vice President George Bush played a major role behind the scenes of the Iran/Contra 

scandal.  After the Boland amendment forbid direct funding of Contras, VP Bush and CIA Head 

William Casey began using the CIA for secret foreign policy.  Lt Col North establishing Mena, 

Ark to help fund the Contras fight against communism was actually a cover for drug smuggling.  

Operation Pegasus was connected to Vice President Bush who was responsible for Drug 

Interdiction Operations during the Reagan administration and Iran/Contra.  Key Bush staffer Felix 

Rodriguez was involved in the Iran/Contra air supply effort and approached the Medellin cartel to 

get them to make a donation to Contras during the Boland amendment for access to transshipment 

point.  CIA clandestine case officer Robert Steele stated on record that Manuel Noriega was told 

by CIA head Bill Casey that he could have a free run of drugs into America provided he support 

the Contras from Panama.  Clandestine Operation Watch Tower was a series of missions involving 

US Army 10th and 7th Special Forces.  It operated out of Panama and involved the placement of 

US Army Green Berets inside the Colombian border to plant radar beacons so that low level flights 

could successfully navigate undetected and land in military airfields to off load cocaine.    

According to CIA agent Terry Reed Clandestine Operation Project Enterprise utilized Machinery 

International was a front corporation at Mena, Ark.  Front corporations like Machinery 

International are utilized by the CIA during covert operations to provide cover for clandestine 

activities.  Machinery International was supposedly making weapons for Contra fighters to fight 

communism but instead of the Contras the weapons went to the Medellin cartel.  The Arkansas 

National Guard Armory had most component parts within its inventory from which to build guns.  

The CIA enlisted a clandestine group of manufacturing companies to build critical gun parts which 

by law create a paper trail from manufacturer to end user.  As per CIA instructions no serial 



numbers were stamped into parts and no documentation created to leave a trial producing 

untraceable weapons for the Medellin cartel.  Pablo Escobar told his son that he worked with the 

Company to finance a war against communism and the CIA got a wonderful deal.  He did not make 

money alone but with US agencies which allowed him access to that kind of money.  According 

to his son he had direct relations with the CIA and was just a cog in the international drug 

trafficking network.  When it no longer served them, they killed him.  Terry Reed discovered 

cocaine at Mena, Ark, got cold feet, and went to Felix Rodriguez and quit the operation.  Mena, 

Ark is still operating as a drug transshipment point to this day.   

The Attorney General of Louisiana stated to US Attorney General Ed Meese that narcotics 

trafficker Barry Seal has smuggled 3-5 billion worth of cocaine into the US.   Clandestine CIA 

pilot Barry Seals covertly transported weapons and narcotics for the CIA and Medellin Cartel thru 

Mena, Ark.   He would depart Mena, Ark with a C133 cargo plane capable of 60,000 pounds and 

cache of untraceable weapons to staging areas in central America and return with loads of cocaine 

for sale in US.  As part of Operation Amadeus CIA pilots flew small aircraft loaded with cocaine 

into local airports throughout New Mexico under CIA protection.  CIA agent Terry Reed asserts 

that the clandestine CIA operation at Mena, Ark was moved to New Mexico after attracting media 

attention over the Iran/Contra scandal.  Clandestine Operation Amadeus involved military flights 

of C130's carrying 2-3000 kilos of cocaine per load from South America into the US thru military 

bases and return flights with cache of weapons.  CIA operative Barry Seal wasn't the only pilot 

trafficking cocaine and drugs under clandestine operation Amadeus.  Long time CIA pilot Robert 

Tosh Plumlee, reported that 50 pilots were involved in this covert operation.  He also stated on 

record that he flew thousands of pounds of cocaine, street value in the billions of dollars, for CIA 

proprietary airlines on C-130 aircraft into El Toro and Homestead AFB and then flew back with 

cache of weapons.  Plumlee reported that aircrafts had to have transponder codes issued by the US 

government to cross the Mexican border into US.  Gene Wheaton, retired Army Warrant Officer 

and criminal investigator, provided the tail numbers of 62 military aircraft used in this illegal covert 

op to US DOJ.  They testified to USDOJ but their testimony was never discussed in the Iran/Contra 

hearings.  According to the Kerry Committee Report:  "three months before his assassination Barry 

Seal described in sworn testimony to federal and state investigators a nexus of airstrips, front 

corporations, “legitimate” Arkansas companies and banks participating in the shipment of drugs 

and laundering of drug profits. His interrogators IRS agent Bill Duncan and Russell Welch of the 

Arkansas State Police had hoped to get Seal to gradually detail the bigger picture and were 

frustrated in their efforts when Seal, then under a drug conviction in Louisiana, was returned to 

that state for sentencing"  

According to the Kerry Committee Report:  "Barry Seal and the Cartel Barry Adler Seal, a former 

narcotics smuggler, was utilized as an undercover agent by the DEA in a highly sensitive operation 

being run against the Colombian cocaine cartels and officials of the Sandinista regime in Managua. 

Based upon intelligence the DEA had received, an interest had been expressed by some members 

of the Sandinista Directorate in providing a base of operations in Nicaragua for the cartels. U.S. 

law enforcement officials had hoped to entrap both members of the cartels and Sandinista officials 

in a drug sting being run by Seal. However, the operation was disclosed prematurely by an 

administration official who leaked to the press evidence supposedly collected by Seal in an effort 

to influence a pending Congressional vote on Contra aid.  Law enforcement officials were furious 



that their undercover operation was revealed and agents’ lives jeopardized because one individual 

in the U.S. government-Lt. Col. Oliver North decided to play politics with the issue.  Associates 

of Seal, who operated aircraft service businesses at the Mena, Arkansas airport, were also the 

targets of grand jury probes into narcotics trafficking.  Despite the availability of evidence 

sufficient for an indictment on money laundering charges and over the strong protests of State and 

federal law enforcement officials, the cases were dropped. 2 The apparent reason was that the 

prosecution might have revealed national security information, even though all of the crimes which 

were the focus of the investigation occurred before Seal became a federal informant"  

DEA agent and former Marine Enrique Kiki Camarena was following the money trail of cocaine 

trafficking into the US when he was kidnapped, tortured and murdered in Mexico in February 1985.  

In October 2013, the Borderland Beat reported that Camarena was murdered on orders of the CIA 

because he had discovered the connection of drug trafficking and its profits to support the 

"counterrevolution" (the Contras). The motive for the murder was to prevent him from blowing 

the whistle on narcotrafficking of cocaine into the US to fund the Contra War in Nicaragua, 

according to El Diario de Coahuila and Proceso, the two Mexican newspapers who first broke the 

story.   Cash confiscated at Mena, Ark have been traced to the DEA; it seems the DEA funded the 

Mena operation with cash seized from the illegal drug trade.  An aspect of Operation Amadeus 

during Iran/Contra was the sale of working Lockheed C-130's and P-3's from the Air Force 

boneyard in Phoenix, AZ and the Air Museum in MCAS El Toro, Ca to CIA proprietary contractors 

for use by CIA pilots.  USMC Colonel Sabow was Assistant Chief of Staff, 3rd Marine Aircraft 

Wing when he unwittingly discovered operation Amadeus, a clandestine operation flying weapons 

and supplies to the Contras on CIA proprietary airlines. MC Colonel James Sabow was found dead 

in the backyard of his home at MCAS El Toro, CA in 1991.  His brother Dr David Sabow, who 

later proved otherwise, was informed that he had committed suicide 30 min after his body was 

discovered.  Marine Corps Colonel James Sabow discovered C130's flying north from Nicaragua 

landing at MCAS El Toro with 3000 kilos of cocaine landing in the middle of the night.  He and 

his staff decided to use undercover methods to find out how the drugs were getting there.  

According to Col Sabow's wife during a 65 minute telephone call to Deputy Commandant General  

John K. Davis the night before he was murdered stated that he just learned that CIA proprietary 

C130 aircraft were flying cocaine into the base; this illegal activity must stop and if the Corps filed 

formal charges of misuse of government aircraft, he would press for a court martial and blow the 

whistle on illegal narcotrafficking.  Colonel Sabow didn’t know until the day before his murder 

that the C-130’s were bringing cocaine into the US from Central America.  USMC Colonel 

Sabow's death was staged as a suicide by the NIS with knowledge of senior Marine Corps and 

Department of Defense officials.  Their motive was to prevent USMC Colonel James Sabow from 

blowing whistle on use of MCAS El Toro to supply the CIA with propriety C-130's flying cocaine 

into the base for distribution in California.    

Operation Amadeus was the main cocaine supply channel of the west coast and CIA informant 

Oscar Danilo Blandon during Iran/Contra.  It went on to fuel one of the worst drug epidemics in 

US history on the west coast.  In 1996 San Jose Mercury News Reporter, Gary Webb published 

the Dark Alliance lengthy in depth series which exposed the connection between the CIA and 

violent Los Angeles drug gangs.  He began revealing the hypocrisy of the "War on Drugs" after 

investigating the Oscar Danilo Blandon-Freeway Rick Ross connection.  According to Gary Webb 

there exists a 1982 agreement between US Attorney general William French Smith and CIA head 



William Casey that drug trafficking cases involving CIA agents wouldn't be reported to the Justice 

department from 1982-95.  The Sandanista's was a populist uprising in Nicaragua which the 

Reagan administration authorized 19 million to fund the Contras against.  The Iran/Contra scandal 

revealed that the CIA authorized FDN leaders to sell coke in California in order to fund their 

insurgency.  During the 80's the US set up and supported despotic anti-communist regimes globally 

to profit off of drug trafficking.  The Oscar Danilo Blandon-Freeway Rick Ross connection fueled 

the west coast crack epidemic.   This drug network opened up a direct link between Colombian 

cartels and black neighborhoods in LA.  Freeway Rick Ross was the major supplier of Crips and 

bloods during the genesis of the crack cocaine epidemic in black ghettos from mid 80's to late 90's.  

This was the first network to switch from powder to crack cocaine which opened up markets and 

multiplied profits.  They franchised rock houses as their crack distribution spread; networks only 

appeared in black neighborhoods.    

The War on Drugs, as most policies of Washington D.C., is Orwellian in nature.  An aide of the 

President Nixon administration is on record saying the "War on Drugs was actually war on black 

people".  In October 1986 President Reagan signed the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1986, which 

appropriated $1.7 billion to fight the "War on Drugs".  This bill also created mandatory minimum 

penalties for drug offenses.  In 1987 the homicide rate in the US began increasing by 5% each year, 

peaking in 1991 when crack cocaine was developing in urban centers.  President Bush assigned 

William Bennett as drug czar in 1989 and announced the "consequences' and 'confrontations' 

strategy.  He also increased federal spending on the War on Drugs to the tune of 12 billion dollars 

spent on fighter planes, submarines, and military hardware.  In 1989 Secretary of Defense Dick 

Cheney allocated 450 million to go after drug smuggling in the Caribbean and South America.  

The 1994 Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act also known as the "Clinton Crime 

Bill" continued the decimation of "African American" communities and was the culmination of 

the "War on Drugs" .  It was infamously introduced with Hillary Clinton referring to juvenile black 

offenders as super predators and was the largest crime control bill in US history with 30 billion in 

spending.  At the time of its' passing the US Sentencing Commission had already noted that 

punitive criminal control and prison policies disproportionately affected communities of color.  

The Clinton Crime Bill introduced 3 strikes mandatory life sentences for repeat offenders; money 

for 100,000 new police officers; 9.7 bn in fund for prisons; provided 8.7 billion to states for prison 

construction in truth in sentencing guidelines; doubled federal prison pop.  Along with sentencing 

guidelines like the Rockefeller drug laws it accelerated mass incarceration and promoted 

significant racial disparities in the prison population because of the differences in sentencing for 

crack and powdered cocaine.  Possession of crack, which was cheaper and ubiquitous, resulted in 

a harsher sentencing for lower income communities.  The Clinton Crime Bill also criminalized 

minorities during the War on Drugs.  The media do not set their own investigative agendas 

independently but operate as part of the political establishment.  In May 1995 the U.S. Sentencing 

Commission released a report that acknowledged the racial disparities of prison sentencing for 

cocaine versus crack. The commission suggests reducing the discrepancy, but Congress overrode 

its' recommendation for the first time in history.  

The "War on Drugs" waged on black communities from the mid 80's to late 90's is a diabolical yet 

genius scheme by Washington DC.  The US government used the War on Drugs to criminalize 

"African American" community in the same way they use politics to criminalize the whole 

FanmiLavalas Party in Haiti by calling them bandits and thugs.  Like the Duvalier class in Haiti, 



the Boule class in the US assisted; ignored or failed to respond to what Washington DC did during 

the crack era.  LAPD officer Michael Ruppert stated that he witnessed CIA involvement in flooding 

LA with drugs and exposed CIA operations Amadues, Pegasus, and Watchtower when he 

confronted CIA director John Deutch on C-span during a townhall meeting on CIA involvement 

in drug trafficking after the release of the Dark Alliance expose by Gary Webb.  Congresswoman 

Maxine Waters (boule) and the Congressional Black Caucus did nothing with their findings than 

hold committee hearings with no repercussions.  I grew up in the crack era and was regretful when 

I discovered the Gary Webb series about the Iran/Contra scandal.  The genius of the War on Drugs 

is that it utilized the crack epidemic to criminalize and destroy black communities while 

Washington DC is the one distributing and profiting off of it globally.  It was also a form of social 

control as addiction caused families to become dysfunctional and countless crack babies were 

produced.  Washington DC also profits off of the incarceration of these black communities thru 

the War on Drugs.  The US court system is connected to the cusip system which is attached to the 

stock market and US citizens are traded like stocks once they're arrested.  I t is a continualization 

of the utilization of "black" people as property for profit started by the "former" American colonies 

and continued under the 13th amendment.    

  

The US incarcerates a higher percentage of its citizens than any other country in world.  DynCorp 

Int runs the US federal prison system and the CCA has a minimum capacity requirement clause in 

its contracts.  The military industrial complex also benefits from the War on Drugs as an excuse 

for their budget and purchase of military goods is justified.  The CIA uses the drug trade to finance 

their black ops which are used to shut down socialist countries like Haiti globally and set up 

narcostates by establishing kakistocracies.    

The murders of teenagers Kevin Ives and Don Henry who were killed in Saline county and left on 

railroad tracks to be run over by a train is linked to Mena, Ark.  Their murders are covered up and 

deaths ruled as suicide. This lead to students at University of Arkansas forming the Arkansas 

Committee to look into Mena, Ark allegations of drugs, money laundering, and Arkansas politics. 

They gathered thousands of signatures and went directly to Governor Clinton demanding he lead 

an investigation into Mena, Ark to no avail.  In 1989 a US Senate Subcommittee calls the available 

evidence on Mena, Ark sufficient for an indictment on money laundering charges but the Feds shut 

down the 5 yr. probe of Mena, Ark and interfere with the local investigation.  State police are taken 

off the case; Clinton refuses to prosecute or fund the investigation.  Roger Clinton during a cocaine 

sting states "got to get some for my brother.  He's got a nose like a vacuum cleaner".  President 

William J Clinton fired 80% of the staff of the Office of National Drug Control at the White House 

once elected.  He also fired 355 members of the DEA; eliminated 14.6 million from the coast 

guard's drug interdiction budget; slashed the DOD anti-drug budget by 300 billion; drug treatment 

and prevention budget by 230 million; terminated the money laundering section of the justice 

department's criminal division.  Under his administration US Attorney Janet Reno refuses to 

prosecute any narcotics cases involving the CIA.  On May 1, 1995 President Clinton shut down 

radar tracking of drug shipments from Columbia and Peru which according to US intelligence 

officials allowed an estimated 1000 plane loads of cocaine and heroin to enter the US freely. The 

book Cocaine Politics; Drugs, Armies and the CIA in Central America by Peter Dale Scott details 

the Iran/Contra connection between secret teams and covert operations during the Reagan era.  It 

reveals that global drug trafficking has been reinforced and increased by right wing US 



interventions in other parts of the world since WW2.  NAFTA has contributed significantly to the 

illicit drug trade.  The most notable component of NAFTA  targeted the communal land sharing 

system, Ejido, established under Art 27 of the 1917 Mexican Constitution.  In 1991 NAFTA 

negotiations the constitutional right to ejidos was eliminated; the state removed subsidiaries to 

farmers; and eliminated government price regulations for the poor.  Neoliberal programs privatized 

the economy and excluded South Mexico from benefits.  Inequality has contributed to success of 

Mexican cartel cause NAFTA created a network of disenfranchised farmers and willing to pursue 

profit in the illicit economy.  NAFTA has contributed to the widening of the development gap 

between Mexico and North America.  Resulted in cheap American labor and pinned the Mexican 

economy to the US market.  At the time President Clinton ordered his cabinet not to speak about 

how NAFTA would also benefit the drug trade.  According to Phil Jordan DEA "for the godfathers 

of the drug trade in Columbia and Mexico this was a deal made in narco heaven".  

According to Eduardo Valle Espinoza former advocate of Attorney General Mexico:  Mexico is a 

Narco Democracy where drug trafficking has permeated all political structures and has corrupted 

federal, state, and local officials.  It has deformed the economy.  It is a cancer that has generated 

financial and political dependence which instead of producing goods, has created serious problems 

ultimately affecting honest businessmen.  The AG's office is unable to eradicate drug trafficking 

because government structures at all levels are corrupted.  America is actually a Kakistocracy 

operating under the guise of democracy....In September 1995 Washington DC newsletter Strategic 

Investments article noted that Latin American drug cartels have stretched their tentacles much 

deeper into our lives than most people believe.  It's possible they are calling the shots at all levels 

of government.  

According to the Kerry Report:  Contra cocaine traffickers took advantage of the US 

anticommunist sentiment which existed in Central America and they undoubtedly used it for drug 

trafficking.  

• On October 5, 1988, the Subcommittee received sworn testimony from the Miami 

prosecutor handling the Neutrality and gun running cases that he had been advised that 

some officials in the Justice Department had met in 1986 to discuss how “to undermine” 

Senator Kerry’s attempts to have hearings regarding the allegations.  

• As DEA officials testified last July before the House Judiciary Subcommittee on Crime, 

Lt. Col. Oliver North suggested to the DEA in June 1985 that $1.5 million in drug money 

carried aboard a plane piloted by DEA informant Barry Seal and generated in a sting of the 

Medellin Cartel and Sandinista officials, be provided to the Contras. 25 While the 

suggestion was rejected by the DEA, the fact that it was made highlights the potential 

appeal of drug profits for persons engaged in covert activity  

• There is also evidence on the record that U.S. officials involved in assisting the Contras 

knew that drug smugglers were exploiting the clandestine infrastructure established to 

support the war and that Contras were receiving assistance derived from' drug trafficking. 

Instead of reporting these individuals to the appropriate law enforcement agencies, it 

appears that some officials may have turned a blind eye to these activities.  

• Misrepresenting oneself as a U.S. government official is normally not considered to be a 

major crime. However, during the course of this investigation, the. Subcommittee found  



that many individuals who became involved in gun running, Neutrality Act violations and 

even supporting narcotics trafficking did so because "they were told that their actions were 

either on the behalf of, or sanctioned by, the U.S. government."  

• Upon reviewing the matter with .staff of the" Iran/Contra Committees, the Sub- committee 

learned that neither the Iran/Contra Committees nor the White House had had access to 

uncensored North Notebooks. Instead, North or his attorney had deleted portions of. the 

Notebooks which they considered to be outside the jurisdiction of the Iran/ Contra 

Committees. In all, 1,269 of the pages of the Notebooks were censored to some extent by 

North or his attorneys prior to being delivered to the Iran/Contra Committees, with 155 

pages blacked out completely  

• The Subcommittee has received allegations that heroin dealers used the war in Afghanistan 

as cover for their operations. There are reports of guns for drugs exchanges and significant 

drug related corruption. The 1988 International Drug Control Strategy Report prepared by 

the State Department, obliquely acknowledged the problem, stating "individual Resistance 

elements, reportedly engage in , opium production and trafficking as a source of income to 

provide staples for populations under their control and to fund weapons purchases.”    

Further it has been alleged that weapons for the resistance were diverted to the international 

arms market.  

• In reviewing this, testimony, members of, the Subcommittee subsequently drafted, 

moneylaundering legislation which was incorporated into the Omnibus Drug Bill of 1988 

and enacted into law in October, 1988  

• To function, the criminal organizations which ’control the drug business must have access 

to commercial banks -willing to take large amounts of U.S. currency anonymously. 

Moreover, they must be able to keep secret the identity of the beneficial owners of the 

secret accounts. Restricting these - two essential requirements for successful money; 

laundering activities, even imperfectly, is. the most important action the United States 

government can take in challenging seriously the operations of the large traffickers 

America has been waging a covert War of Terror on Haiti while claiming to be helping it 

openly.  The War on Terror is similar to the War on Drugs in that it is part of the US 

Military Industrial Complex war for profit strategy.  Washington DC claims to be fighting 

a War on Terror while funding it in order to maintain the Military Industrial Complex.  The 

CIA have worked with Afghanistan's Mujahedeen since 1979 when president Jimmy Carter 

signed off on a covert war against Russia to combat the Soviet invasion of Afghanistan 

from 1979-80. opium sales were used to fund this covert op with the Mujahedeen who 

would later become Al-Qaeda and Taliban.  In July 2000 Taliban leader Mulla Mohammed 

Omar declared growing opium poppies un-Islamic and began collaborating with the UN to 

eradicate heroin production in Afghanistan.  This resulted in one of the world's most 

successful anti-drug campaigns with a 99% reduction in opium poppy grown in Taliban 

areas which is 3/4 of the world's heroin supply.  In September 2000 the Taliban sent a 

delegation to the UN headquarters in NY to trade upon the country's continuing drug 

prohibition in a bid for diplomatic recognition instead UN imposed sanctions for protecting 

"Osama bin Laden".  The US provided them humanitarian aid to the tune of 43 million and 

Colin Powell stated "the ban on poppy cultivation is a decision by the Taliban that we 



welcome “but "their support for terrorism; violation of internationally recognized human 

rights standards; especially their treatment of women and girls".  In the aftermath of the 

9/11 attacks, which was also a highly sophisticated clandestine operation, the US began 

bombing Afghanistan on October 2001.  The CIA shipped 70 million in cash into the 

country to mobilize its old cold war coalition of tribal warlords to fight the Taliban.  With 

the support of British forces they launched an invasion spear headed by these local warlords 

and the Taliban regime collapsed.  Opium production began again with the US occupation 

of 2001.  More land is now used for opium production in Afghanistan than is used for cocoa 

cultivation in Latin America and supplies more than 90% of the heroin worldwide.  

Afghanistan's unique ecology converged with American military technology to transform 

this remote, landlocked nation into the world's first true narco-state. DynCorp Int is 1 of 3 

preeminent private mercenary corporations in the world and is the dominant entity for 

training security forces in the middle east. They also  manage police and court system in 

US occupied Iraq. DynCorp Int is also a CIA proprietary organization, a business designed 

to provide a service wanted by the CIA which is secretly owned by the CIA but disguised 

to appear in public as an independent private business.  

Washington DC outsourced opium control to British allies and police training to German allies.  A 

2004 CIA intelligence report revealed that the revival of the drug trade in Afghanistan was fueling 

a resurgence of the Taliban.  DynCorp Int was then contracted to train special teams of Afghanistan 

soldiers to eradicate drugs to no avail.  In a 2007 New York Times article US Secretary of Defense 

Donald Rumsfeld "dismissed growing signs that drug money was being funneled by the Taliban, 

while the CIA and the military turned a blind eye to drug-related activities by prominent warlords".  

The UN Afghanistan Opium Survey of 2007 found that the country's then record opium harvest of 

approximately 8,2000 tons provided 93% of worlds illicit heroin supply.  They also stated Taliban 

guerrillas have started to extract from the drug economy resources for arms, logistics, and militia 

pay for their insurgency.  A New York Times article in February 2016 reported that the 

Afghanistan government offices have become directly involved in the opium trade and behave just 

like the Taliban.  

The worst kept secret in the Marine Corps is that the US government is involved in the drug trade 

and uses the military as a cover for shipping and transporting drugs.   Even at their Haiti 

transshipment point the, US blatantly uses Navy ships to transport their trade.  The death of NFL 

star and patriot Pat Tillman occurred under suspicious conditions on April 22, 2004.  He is quoted 

stating on record in Afghanistan “the War on Terror is a sham, we're just here to guard drugs for 

the CIA and bankers, the American people need to be told."  Two days later he was "suicided" 

with 3 shots to the head at close range from a NATO rifle.  Tillman was an avid war critic and all 

evidence of the circumstances of his death; body armor; uniform; personal journal were destroyed.  

Pat Tillman died of friendly fire yet was still awarded the Silver Star, which led to an investigation.  

If a soldier guarding the opium poppy fields in Afghanistan complained publicly about it were 

usually suicided.  The Taliban destroyed all the opium poppy fields because it was corrupting their 

country and their youth.  This caused the Washington DC cartel to lose 300 million a month in 

drug money; the invasion was to make Afghanistan start producing it again.  The CIA are the 

biggest covert drug distributers in the world and fund all black operations with it.  

After 9/11, and the passage of the PATRIOT Act, the restraints on the FBI that were in place since 

the revelation of COINTELPRO by a Secret Citizens Council were loosened and the FBI’s mission 



formally shifted to domestic intelligence again.  The division among intelligence agencies was also 

loosened after 9/11 for the exchange of information.  The FBI now had access to the National 

Security Agency’s data retrievals, and proceeded to investigate organizations simply because they 

opposed the war in Iraq. Among the FBI’s targets were the Catholic Worker and the American 

Friends Service Committee.  The development of Internet Social Networks has made domestic 

surveillance easier for the intelligence gathering agencies.  In the War on Terror the Bureau now 

spends an inordinate amount of time and resources paying or otherwise bribing criminals into 

becoming paid informers, and using them to goad and entrap young, poor, and sometimes mentally 

handicapped Muslim men into carrying out terrorist attacks they would neither have the 

wherewithal nor intention of otherwise committing.  Since 2014, at least eighty-eight people have 

been arrested on charges of supporting ISIS, many of which had little or no connection to the 

terrorist group. That doesn’t even count those arrested on more generic terrorism charges, typically 

in plots the FBI themselves have created.  This is a continuation of methods the FBI pioneered 

during the COINTELPRO years, when the Bureau regularly paid provocateurs to infiltrate student 

protesters and urge violence but worse because the foreign and domestic capabilities are combined.  

  

The Gulf of Tompkins incident which started Vietnam War was connected to the CIA.  Vietnam 

was a for profit war fought by Washington DC and the Military Industrial Complex.  According to 

the Christian Science Monitor report the CIA was cognizant if not party to the extensive movement 

of opium shipments; gave special clearance and monitored flights southward out of the country.  

This way also caused 30,000 US servicemen in Vietnam to become addicted to heroin.  In 1975 

the NYPD arrested the managers of a small branch of Chemical Bank for laundering money for 

the Paul Lucas heroin mob.  Lucas was a small time operator supplied by returning Vietnam 

veterans.  He retailed a few million a year in heavily cut heroin and laundered the money thru the 

Chemical Bank branch.  Lucas's mob filled the entire vault with money and laundered 3million a 

year thru branch.   Anti-drug senator Lyndon Larouche commissioned the Executive Intelligence 

Review to investigate the international drug trade which resulted in the book Dope Inc by Jeffrey 

Steinberg.  It was the first book to reveal that the illegal drug cartel was becoming the world's 

biggest business.  The first chapter was entitled "the Book That Drove Henry Kissinger Crazy."  

The kingpins of the Washington DC cartel former CIA head Bush, Kissinger, anti-defamation 

league of B'nai B'rith launched a years long effort to silence the authors.  Senator Larouche was 

railroaded on trumped up "conspiracy charges" in 1988 and jailed within days of president Bush's 

inauguration in 1989.  Henry Kissinger risked federal criminal prosecution for persisting that the 

DOJ and FBI indict Senator Larouche.   The Bretton Woods agreement was established in 1944 

by president Franklin D Roosevelt as a system of regulated fixed exchange rates for the 

international banking system. ...It was developed in 1944 at UN Monetary and Financial 

Conference held in Bretton Woods, it also created the International Monetary Fund (IMF).  During 

the President Nixon administration, Henry Kissinger instigated the abolishment of the Bretton 

Woods and Glass Steagal Act.  This allowed for the markets to participate in international financing, 

money laundering and highly leveraged unregulated speculation which led to the 2008 economic 

collapse.  This action gave the Washington DC banking cartel total access to the international 

financial system.    

  



The FED not only manipulates the markets to their benefit they also benefit from being subsidized 

by the Washington DC when projects fail in the name of protecting the people.  Penn Central 

Railroad and Lockheed Corporation were bailed out in 1970.  Commonwealth Bank of Detroit was 

bailed in 1972; New York City in 1975; Chrysler in 1978; First Pennsylvania Bank in 1980; 

Continental Illinois in 1982; and Operation Bail-Out of 2008.  The Washington DC Banking Cartel 

doesn't only use the US treasury to create fiat currency.  The illicit drug market plays an 

instrumental role in funding Wall St.  where it's treated like commodity.  The Washington DC 

Banking Cartel operates against the public interest.  According to Michael Kenney's "power 

principal"; the survival of an illicit organization is dependent upon the accumulation of and access 

to power, notably political power.  The US accounts for more than 40% of total cocaine 

consumption, with the value of retail dope on American streets at 200 billion a year.  That amount 

of money is hard to hide from the eyes of the tax and drug enforcement authorities; the dope trade 

should stand out like thumb.   According to the UN Office on Drugs and Crime report in 2009, 

Antonio Acosta exposed that "drug money became main source of liquidity for banks after 2008 

implosion of the financial system" stated "panic in the banking system has completely dried out 

credit", "it was drug money that floated banks during the financial crisis".   He produced evidence 

that cartel money was the only liquid investment capital available during the crisis of 08.  The drug 

game is run from top down and Washington DC and their Banking Cartel are at the top.  The 

Company makes it money thru clandestine drug trafficking, smuggling and distribution while the 

money is laundered thru the FED.  The UN Office on Drugs and Crime estimates that the North 

American market for cocaine alone totals approximately 35 billion.  US financial institutions found 

to be involved in the international drug trade are JP Morgan Chase; Bank of America; Western 

Union; Wachovia all were convicted of laundering drug money.  On March 7, 2010 a subcommittee 

investigation revealed HSBC was heavily invested in money laundering to the tune of 378.4 billion.  

Jacob-Rothschild’s banking cartel banks laundered trillions dollars a year thru this system allowing 

total integration of a legitimate system with elements of dope.    

  

The Federal Reserve System requires that the banks hold no less than 10% of their deposits in 

reserve.  The banks create money thru loaning out the remaining 90% reserve thru fractional 

banking.  Whenever a bank receives a deposit or gives out a loan a new sum of money is created.  

With the flexible fiat currency they're able to earn perpetual interest on nothing.  Central banks are 

the supreme and preferred instrument of usury.  The Washington DC Banking Cartel makes interest 

on any loan of their flexible fiat currency.  Washington DC uses the Federal Reserve to launder 

money thru the fractional reserve banking system.  A bank's reserves consists of US currency plus 

balances in Federal Reserve accounts, paper currency on hand and balances in FED accounts are 

interchangeable.  The expansion of the dollar denominated money supply by the Federal Reserve 

System, including the printing of billions of dollars of US dollar notes for the purposes of 

narcotransactions constitutes profit for the Washington DC Banking Cartel and its constituent 

private banking institutions in the form of interest.  According to Jeffrey Steinberg author of Dope, 

Inc. estimated at $600 Billion and Growing, Executive Intelligence Review, as of 14 Dec 2001.  

Yields on dollar denominated bonds issued outside of the US by foreign entities or within the US 

by foreign corporations and governments are higher.   Drug money is also invested in a number of 

financial instruments including hedge funds and stock market transactions complete with offshore 

centers structured for laundering currency of the international narcotics trade.  The major Wall 



Street and European banks and stock brokerage firms launder billions of dollars resulting from the 

trade in narcotics.  Wall St., New York is the actual capital of the Federal Reserve Banking System.  

Executive Intelligence Review also revealed the fact that the British Monarchy with the crown of 

the City of London is a state within a state like Vatican City-State in Italy, the City of London is 

also known as a state within a state; like the District of Columbia D.C. in Washington is a state 

within a state; they're all corporate city-states.  

  

  

3.  UNSCR 940 issued on 31 July 1994 is responsible for the incursion of DynCorp Int. and 

presence of cholera in Haiti in lieu of:  

  

 A.  On December 1, 2016 UN Secretary General apologized for the role the UN played in the 

October 2010 outbreak of cholera in Haiti following the 7.0 Earthquake.  DynCorp Int. is actually 

responsible for the cholera epidemic in Haiti because they contracted the Nepalese soldiers accused 

of causing the cholera outbreak.  The same Nepalese soldiers were also implicated in death of 

Gerard Jean-Gilles a 16 year old boy who ran errands for them.  The spreading cholera outbreak 

has killed at least 9,300 people, mostly Haitian kids and babies, and infected 800,000 adults and 

spread like a pandemic to the Dominican Republic and Cuba.  Extensive evidence shows that the 

deadly strain of Vibrio cholera was introduced as a result of reckless sanitation management on a 

peacekeeping base where untreated human waste from the Nepalese soldiers deployed from a 

cholera-endemic country leaked into Haiti’s principal river system. Genetic testing of the strain in 

Haiti determined it to be a “perfect match” to the strain active in the troop-contributing country 

from which the peacekeepers hail from.  MINUSTAH’s introduction of cholera to Haiti occurred 

at a time of growing popular discontent with the Mission for its perceived lack of accountability 

to the population and immunity from legal prosecution for acts of sexual violence, excessive use 

of force. The weak capacity of the Haitian government to prosecute the human rights violations of 

Haitians in general has created a structural vulnerability that exposes Haitians to further Human 

rights violations by external actors.  Haiti never had cholera in its whole history before it was 

introduced by DynCorp Int which is part of the clandestine operating division of the CIA.  This 

follows the pattern of destruction being waged in Haiti by Washington DC under the guise of 

assistance.  DynCorp Int was given a 322 million contract to develop, produce, test, and store FDA 

licensed vaccines from the DoD.  DynCorp Int. has all vaccine contracts for the Center for Disease 

Control (CDC).  They have also been linked to the American Pharmaceutical Industry.  

Dyncorp Int has conducted unsuspecting microbiology experiments on populations such as: Ebola 

virus, Zika virus, and the Tuskegee Experiment.  DynCorp Int has also been supervising the forced 

vaccination of kids by UNICEF has been going on at Mirebalais hospital.  UN officials have stated, 

on the record that children have gone missing from hospitals in Haiti since the devastating Jan 12 

earthquake.  DynCorp Int. is known for an amalgamation of sex, child, and human trafficking. 

Fanmim-Lavalas lawyer Ezilio Danto has stated on record that Haitian parents told her that kids, 

sick from cholera, who went to Mirebalais Hospital for treatment were disappearing never to be 

seen again.  The kids who died from cholera were placed in DynCorp Int. body bags and staff 

wouldn’t let parents have or identify the bodies of their children.  The cholera epidemic has 

provided DynCorp Int. with cover for organ harvesting the 2,000 victims of the cholera epidemic. 

MINISTUH soldiers keep guard on the state of the art Mirebalais Hospital, which has a helipad 



raising fears of child trafficking, and was constructed in Northern Haiti far away from the south 

where the Earthquake happened and victims remain homeless.  

  

  

The United Nations Security Council Resolution 1892 issued on 13 October 2009 is 

responsible for the IHRC/Clinton Foundation creation of Caracol Industrial Park Complex 

in lieu of:  

  

In The Aftermath Of The Haitian Earthquake, The U.S. State Department and The IHRC promoted 

the creation of an Industrial Park in Caracol, Haiti. “ The Caracol Industrial Park" was financed 

and built with “$400 Million Of Global Aid”.  CIP is a mixed use light manufacturing facility that 

began operating in 2012 in the commune of Caracol.  Hundreds of smallholder farmers were 

coaxed into giving up more than 600 acres of land for the caracol complex, yet nearly 95 percent 

of that land remains unused. Instead, the Clinton Foundation, IHRC, and State Department created 

what a Wall Street Journal writer called “a mishmash of low quality, poorly thought-out 

development experiments and half-finished projects.”  

  

The Haitian farmers that cultivated the nearly 600 acres (240 hectares) of land that is now the 

Caracol Industrial Park are throwing their hands in the air. Two years after their land was taken to 

build the park, promises have not been kept and they feel the compensation they received was 

dishonest.  “An ABC News investigation has found that after opening its factory in the Haitian 

industrial park, built with $400 million of global aid, the Korean firm became a Clinton Foundation 

donor and its owner invested in a startup company owned by Hillary Clinton’s former chief of staff 

Cheryl Mills. Wal-Mart has given $1 Million To $5 Million, And Gap Has Given $100,000 To  

$250,000 To The Foundation.”  The Caracol Industrial Park is yet another example of mult iple 

failed policies under the U.S. humanitarian invasion/occupation.  A 2013 investigation by the 

Government Accountability Office found that most money for the recovery was not being 

dispersed, and that the projects that were being worked on were plagued by delays and cost 

overruns. Many Clinton projects were extravagant public relations affairs that quickly fizzled.   

  

The Clinton Foundation wasn’t operating lawfully as a tax-exempt organization in Haiti.  

Wikileaks revealed that it was originally formed to build a presidential library for bill Clinton.  It 

began work in Haiti in 2003 but it didn’t have clearance from NY authorities to operate 

internationally, which is why no official audit was conducted for several years.  It failed to file 

990’s from 98- 07 aggregating their government grants.  The Clinton Foundation is not authorized 

by the IRS to engage in activities such as fighting HIV/AIDS, disaster relief, and climate change 

internationally, which is more fruitful fundraising.  It hasn’t complied with NY laws which clearly 

require the identity and amounts of all gov’t grants (domestic and foreign) be reported.  It's a 

massive operating and solicitation fraud cause in order to solicit in most states and nations it had 

to register making truthful declarations.  The registration for Clinton Foundation shows that it was 

raising money for a presidential library based in Little Rock, Ark.  The sweatshop that they built 

at Caracol, which is in the extreme north of the country, away from where the earthquake hit Haiti 

in 2010, was supposed to employ 60,000 people. They have actually employed 5,000 people, 



paying them 60 cents an hour, using a South Korean company who is very friendly and close to 

Mr. Ban Ki-moon (former Secretay General of UN and FOB).  

  

There have been more than 1000 reported deaths in Caracol Industrial Park.  The sweat shops are 

being turned into sex shops thru a program for women to earn extra money by providing sex to 

construction workers for bonus pay(1000 beds Ekam housing).  They're paid for the sex thru 

Digicell phones which also offer micro-loans to workers to purchase sewing machines, these 

microloans charge 195% interest.  Haitian women are coerced into buying sewing machines with 

micro loans with 195% interest rates and once they go into debt they are either; forced into 

prostitution; their kids forced to work all day or into prostitution; selling their kids to child 

traffickers; or giving up kidneys in order to pay off debt.  Carlos Slim and the owner of Digi-Cell 

also run the same operation in India.  Haitian women have described Digi cell men walking into 

their houses and soliciting their daughters for sex.  They can't do anything to stop it and are obliged 

to accept whatever these foreigners offer in order survive.  On November 13, 2016 Monica 

Peterson was found dead in Haiti under suspicious conditions. Oddly enough on November 14th, 

the Laboratory to combat Human Trafficking reported that Monica Peterson, investigating the 

Clinton’s involvement in Haiti for the Human Trafficking Center mysteriously died the day before.   

She was working with her mentor Claude D’Estree, the executive director of the Human 

Trafficking Center at the University of Denver on her 100 page Master Thesis when she died by 

suicide from hanging in Haiti. She had just begun investigating the correlation regarding the 

Clinton Foundation’s Caracol Industrial Park Complex and its connection to a Human Trafficking 

network when her life was cut short. Peterson had been highly critical of the Clinton Foundation 

writing on her blog:  Tony Rodham and “a company that barely exists” got a “sweetheart gold 

mine concession in Haiti” that “royally cheated” the state of Haiti”; in a letter to her friend Peterson 

had uncovered “Two huge trafficking scandals; and a social displacement scandal with billions in 

unaccounted Earthquake aid" leading directly back to the Clintons.”   NYPD Chief of Detectives, 

Robert Boyce, said the Clinton emails contained evidence of sex crimes, child exploitation, money 

laundering, pay to play, etc…  

  

  

6.  UNSCR 940 issued on 31 July 1994 is responsible for the clandestine incursion of DynCorp 

Int. and introduction of sex, child, and human trafficking in Haiti in lieu of:  

  

According to a UN report about the unintended effects of United Nations Intervention:  preceding 

the deployment of MINUSTAH in Haiti, the NGO community made no attempt to publicize, 

research or assist victims of a global sex trafficking industry, suggesting that such networks were 

absent in Haiti prior to the arrival of the UN.  This report also demonstrates that prior to the 

introduction of UN forces, there was an absence of global human trafficking networks in Kosovo, 

Haiti and Sierra Leone. After the introduction of UN forces, human trafficking networks grew in 

all three cases.  DynCorp Int is responsible for training both MINISTUH and the HNP in Haiti 

whose behavior degenerated after said training.  DynCorp Int is involved in child sex trafficking 

according to the Racketeer Influenced Corrupt Organization Act (RICO) lawsuit filed in Texas on 

behalf of the former DynCorp aircraft mechanic Ben Johnston.  Earlier that year Ben Johnston, a 

DynCorp aircraft mechanic for Apache and Blackhawk helicopters in Kosovo, filed a lawsuit 

against his employer. The suit alleged that that in the latter part of 1999 Johnson “learned that 



employees and supervisors from DynCorp were engaging in perverse, illegal and inhumane 

behavior and were purchasing illegal weapons; women; forged; passports; participating in other 

immoral acts.”  Johnston witnessed coworkers and supervisors literally buying and selling women 

for their own personal enjoyment, and employees would brag about the various ages and talents of 

the individual slaves they acquired.  

  

DynCorp Int is known around the world for human sex trafficking and organ harvesting.  In 2004 

Rep Cynthia McKinney questioned Secretary of Defense Donald Rumsfeld about DynCorp Int. 

getting government contracts when they were caught sex trafficking; she also asked about 2.3 

trillion missing from US Treasury, Black Budget, because they needed to balance the budget, now 

up to 6.7 trillion missing.  DynCorp Int is ubiquitous within Washington DC they manage; the 

congressional telephone system; computerized bookkeeping for a dozen federal agencies; as well 

as presiding over the loss or theft of trillions of federal dollars; Dod; HUD.  The financial data 

process for US government accounting system is done by DynCorp Int and Lockheedmartin.  They 

lost 17 bill in 1998; 59 bill in 99; in 2001 the pentagon could not account for 1.1 trillion for the 

fiscal year 2000; and they could not account for 2.3 trillion after 9/11.  DynCorp International was 

involved in a sex slavery scandal in Bosnia in 1999 when its' employees were accused of buying 

and selling of girls as young as 12 by a former employee.  According to Ben Johnston who filed a 

RICO lawsuit against DynCorp after he was fired ostensibly for reporting human rights abuses by 

their employees in Bosnia. In a 2002 report titled “DynCorp,” Johnston was quoted: “None of the 

girls were from Bosnia… They were imported in by DynCorp and the Serbian mafia. These guys 

would say ‘I gotta go to Serbia this weekend to pick up three girls.’… “DynCorps leadership was 

100 percent in bed with the mafia over there.”  

  

Johnston’s RICO lawsuit was not the only instance of wrongdoing to come out of DynCorp’s U.N. 

peace keeping contract in Bosnia.  In 1999, Kathryn Bolkovac went to Bosnia as part of a UN 

mission. She discovered terrible wrongdoing - and refused to stay silent about it. She tells Nisha 

Lilia Diu her incredible story, now the subject of a film starring Rachel Weisz.  According to the 

Guardian:”Kathryn Bolkovac, from Nebraska, was sacked by DynCorp of Virginia, to which 

peacekeeping police work in Bosnia had been outsourced…” “She signed up with DynCorp, 

providing American personnel for the UN…” Bolkavac’s story was later fictionalized into the film 

Whistleblowere, starring Rachel Weisz.  Ben Johnston eventually settled out of court, while 

Bolkovac won her case against DynCorp. Salon reported: “both Johnston and his attorney said they 

viewed the settlement as a victory and as a vindication after two years of fighting the company.” 

The New York Times related Bolkovac’s victory: “A British tribunal has ruled that a former 

member of the UN police force in Bosnia was unfairly fired after she reported to her superiors that 

colleagues in the police force used women and children as sex slaves in connivance with Balkan 

traffickers.” The Telegraph also reported:  “The tribunal stated, ‘It is hard to imagine a case in 

which a firm has behaved in a more callous manner.”  In the aftermath of Bosnia, the United States 

demanded heightened immunity for Americans serving as UN peacekeepers, as opposed to 

increased accountability. DynCorp continued to receive contracts.  

The UN was implicated in furthersex abuse scandals in nations where peace keepers operate with 

immunity. In 2012 Reuters reported: “Two U.N. peacekeepers from Pakistan have been sentenced 

to a year in prison for raping a 14-year-old Haitian boy… Several peacekeepers have been accused 



of rape, in addition to the Pakistanis, in cases that have fueled public protests and demands that 

members of the U.N. force be stripped of their immunity and face trial in Haitian courts.” U.N. 

Peace Keepers were also reported to have been caught on video raping an eighteen year old Haitian 

youth.  Yet besides all of this DynCorp Int continues to get contracted by the US state department.  

DynCorp International announced that the U.S. Department of State Bureau of International 

Narcotics and Law Enforcement Affairs (INL) have awarded the company with a $48.6 million 

contract. The purpose of the contract is to “recruit and support up to 100 UNPOL and 10 U.N. 

Corrections Advisors. DynCorp Int will also provide logistics support to the Haitian National 

Police (HNP) Academy and each academy class. In addition, DynCorp Int will supply five 

highlevel French and Haitian Creole speaking subject matter experts to advise senior HNP 

officials.”  

An article by the Guardian reveals the shame peacekeepers cast on the UN:  “Embarrassment 

caused by the misconduct of UN forces [in] Haiti, Sierra Leone, Bosnia, Cambodia, East Timor 

and the Democratic Republic of the Congo(DRC) … [troops] … were regularly having sex with 

girls aged as young as 12, sometimes in the mission’s administrative buildings.”  The situation in 

Haiti became so serious that BBC reported Sri Lanka had:”promised to look into allegations that 

108 of its UN peacekeepers in Haiti paid for sex, in some cases with underage girls …more than 

700 peacekeepers in Ivory Coast were suspended…”  Yet DynCorp was once again contracted to 

provide troops for the UN in Haiti during this period.  DynCorp Int is known around the world for 

human sex trafficking and organ harvesting.  In 2004 Rep Cynthia McKinney questioned Secretary 

of Defense Donald Rumsfeld about DynCorp Int. getting government contracts when they were 

caught sex trafficking; she also asked about 2.3 trillion missing from US Treasury, Black Budget, 

because they needed to balance the budget, now up to 6.7 trillion missing.  DynCorp International 

was involved in sex scandal slavery in Bosnia in 1999. "its employees accused of rape and the 

buying and selling of girls as young as 12.  In 1999, Kathryn Bolkovac went to Bosnia as part of a 

UN mission. She discovered terrible wrongdoing - and refused to stay silent about it. She tells 

Nisha Lilia Diu her incredible story, now the subject of a film starring Rachel Weisz.    

An April 17 Post story on problems with DynCorp in Afghanistan focused on a suspected drug 

overdose death, breakdown in internal controls within the company, and actions the USG and the 

firm were taking. The other issue that surfaced at the time was a colossal error in judgment by one 

of the contractors' employees in hiring an adolescent boy dancer for some sort of event.  Wiki leaks 

revealed that DynCorp allowed its' employees to hire a 15 year old boy dancer to do tribal dances 

at a party on the training site for the same event where the boy was sexually abused.  The Obama 

administration hired DynCorp at a tax payer price of 48 million dollars to train 110 advisors and 

to “provide logistics” support to the Haitian Police.  

  

  

10.  The utilization of DynCorp Int, which is part of the clandestine operating division of the 

CIA, for the covert occupation of Haiti and clandestine  marginalization of their population 

for a drug transit point by Washington DC under UNSCR 940 is analogous to their 

clandestine   occupation of the Americas and marginalization of their indigenous population 

under COINTELPRO:  

  



In 1950 a Congress hysterical about the “Communist threat” passed the Internal Security Act (the 

McCarran Act) which called for the registration of Communist organizations and their members, 

and also allowed the arrest and indefinite detention of persons engaged in Communist activity 

during a national emergency. Under director Hoover it was secretly expanded by the FBI to cover 

anti-war activists and many other organizations.  COINTELPRO was discovered in March, 1971, 

when secret files were removed from an FBI office and released to news media.  According to the 

FBI website they began, COINTELPRO short for Counterintelligence Program in 1956 to disrupt 

the activities of the Communist Party of the United States. In the 1960's, it was expanded to include 

a number of other domestic groups, such as the Ku Klux Klan, the Socialist Workers Party, and 

the  

Black Panther Party. All COINTELPRO operations were ended in 1971. Although limited in scope  

(about two-tenths of one percent of the FBI’s workload over a 15-year period), COINTELPRO 

was later rightfully criticized by Congress and the American people for abridging first amendment 

rights and for other reasons. The CIA began operation Mockingbird in early 1950's which utilized 

the media as a cover for the global elite.  

After Cambodia was invaded on April 30, 1970 peace activists became frustrated that even massive 

demonstrations had been unable to slow down or much less stop the war.  William Davidon, a 

physics professor at Haverford College, a fixture of antiwar protests in Philadelphia became aware 

of widespread fears within various peace groups that the FBI was infiltrating. It was in this 

atmosphere that he decided “to answer the question was the FBI suppressing dissent?”  In late 1970 

he formed a secret Citizens Committee to Investigate the FBI with seven other anti-war activists.  

They cased out and broke into the unprotected offices of the FBI in Media, Pennsylvania on March 

8, 1971, the night of the Muhammed Ali vs Joe Frazier heavyweight match.  They made off with 

all the files hoping they would find evidence of the FBI’s systematic spying on Americans and had 

no idea what they had in their hands would expose much more.  

The secret Citizens Committee to Investigate the FBI  analyzed the files, copied them, and sent 

packets to the media.  They would soon discover:  

• Two memos in the stolen files headed “COINTELPRO” and “SI.” and had no idea what 

these meant but these document that would have the biggest impact on reining in the  

F.B.I.’s domestic spying activities  

• that there were two FBI's the public, and the secret, and that the latter used deceptions, 

disinformation, and violence as tools to harass, damage, and silence people whose political 

opinions the director opposed.  

• The FBI was engaged in “blackmail, burglary and agents and informers were ordered to 

spy on the private lives, including sexual activities, of the nation’s highest officials.”   

• The FBI’s files included massive amounts of data, much of it supplied by untrained 

informers.  Hundreds of thousands of Americans were targeted or enlisted as informers 

even members of various Ku Klux Klan groups.  There was an agreement with 16,700 

American Legion Posts, utilizing 100,880 members, to spy on their own communities.  

• A damning document from the cache, a 1970 memorandum offered a glimpse into 

Hoover’s obsession with snuffing out dissent; “It will enhance the paranoia endemic in 

these circles and will further serve to get the point across there is an F.B.I. agent behind 



every mailbox,” the message from F.B.I. headquarters said. Another document, signed by 

Hoover himself, revealed widespread F.B.I. surveillance of black student groups on college 

campuses.  

COINTELPRO targeted segments of the population perceived as a threat to "national security" for 

widespread surveillance, disruption, neutralization, and eventually destruction.  Operations were 

initiated against various organizations, including the Puerto Rican Independence Movement, the 

New Left, the American Indian Movement, the Socialist Workers Party (SWP), the Communist 

Party, Moorish Science Temple of America, Liberation News Service (LNS), Unitarian Society of 

Cleveland, Puerto Rican Nationalist Party, Black Panther Party (BPP), Southern Christian 

Leadership Conference (SCLC), Muslim Mosque Inc., Student Non-Violent Coordinating 

Committee (SNCC), Black Nationalist Hate Groups.  In 1964, after the murders of three white civil 

rights volunteers at the beginning of “Freedom Summer,” President Johnson and Attorney General 

Robert F. Kennedy ordered FBI head J Edgar Hoover to add “white hate groups" (KKK) to 

COINTERLPRO.  FBI operations weren't limited to organizations but also targeted groups such 

as members of unions, pacifist groups, anarchists, racial justice groups and individuals like:  Adam 

Clayton Powell, Phillip A. Randolph, Elijah Muhammed, Malcolm X, Martin Luther King, Paul 

Robeson etc. etc.  

The secret Citizens Committee to Investigate the FBI continued to release batches of files to the 

media and the information began to have an impact. On June 13, 1971 the New York Times 

published the first installation of the Pentagon Papers adding a new exposé of illegal governmental 

actions. On December 22, 1974, Seymour Hersh of the Times revealed that the CIA in violation 

of its charter that forbade domestic intelligence had files on thousands of U.S. anti-war activists. 

The Director of CIA Richard Helms denied it under oath but when Congress investigated a year 

later it turned out that; the CIA had data on more than 300,000 people; a thousand organizations; 

with thousands on watch lists to have their mail opened.  The FBI sent Mark Felt to Media to 

investigate the burglary of their office who became the Deep Throat informer in the Watergate 

case.  

In January 1975, the U.S. Senate established a Select Committee to Study Governmental 

Operations with Respect to Intelligence Activities with Senator Frank Church of Idaho serving as 

chairman.  The Church Committee held hearings that shed considerable light on illegal operations, 

abuses, and led to greater congressional oversight of the F.B.I. and other American intelligence 

agencies.  Its impact in exposing the truth was limited in scope because it only required the FBI to 

provide heavily redacted documents and millions of pages of documents remain unreleased.  The 

Church Committee’s final report about the domestic surveillance was blunt:  Many of the 

techniques used would be intolerable in a democratic society even if all of the targets had been 

involved in violent activity, but COINTELPRO went far beyond that.  It was a secret war against 

those citizens it considers threats to the established order.  The Bureau conducted a sophisticated 

vigilante operation aimed squarely at preventing the exercise of First Amendment rights of speech 

and association, on the theory that preventing the growth of dangerous groups and the propagation 

of dangerous ideas would protect the national security and deter violence.  Too many people have 

been spied upon by too many government agencies, and too much information has been collected.  

COINTELPRO existed for years on an ‘ad hoc’ basis before the formal programs were instituted, 

and more significantly, COINTELPRO-type activities may continue today under the rubric of  

‘investigation.’  



Freedom of Information requests, five years of lawsuits lodged against the FBI by the BPP and the 

SWP, dogged reportage, Congressional hearings and statements by agents who came forward to 

confess their counterintelligence activities would reveal the meanings of  COINTELPRO and SI  

through the Freedom of Information Act.  The mysterious “SI” stood for Security Index which in 

1971 was a secret listing of more than 26,000 people who were to be arrested and imprisoned 

without any form of hearing in the event of a national emergency.  FBI director Hoover had begun 

a similar list under another name as early as 1924.  The McCarran act was revoked in 1971, but 

the SI continued under another label until it was "officially" abolished.  The Church Committee’s 

findings and its recommendations to reform the FBI were attacked from within by the FBI and 

outside by conservatives.  The Church Committee led to the creation of the Foreign Intelligence 

Surveillance Court though it did not roll back government surveillance. Only the strengthening of 

the Freedom of Information Act after 1974 had a serious impact.  Officials at the highest levels of 

government were aware of COINTELPRO and approved its continuation.  To control the damage 

and reestablish government legitimacy in the wake of Vietnam and Watergate, Congress and the 

courts compelled the FBI to reveal part of what it had done and to promise it would not do it again.  

The FBI domestic spying activities were seriously scaled back due to the efforts of the Secret 

Citizens Council to Investigate the FBI in the 60's.    

 COINTELPRO made the state a struggle between the public and clandestine agencies for control 

of formal institutions of democracy.  The Secret Citizens Committee exposed the reality that the 

American people were operating in an undemocratic system that wasn't working in the best interest 

of a majority of the population The clandestine intelligence apparatus Washington DC used to 

covertly colonize the indigenous aboriginal population of North America created an inherit tension 

between hierchical core centralized elitist dynamic and a need to legitimize itself once discovered.  

This created a discourse in humanitarianism and operating for the public good which was basically 

rhetoric on the side of clandestine intelligence agencies because they were neither reformed nor 

punished for their illegal actions.  The revelation of COINTELPRO by the secret citizens 

committee and the fact that its primary focus was spying on black citizens was a shock to 

Americans.  After the founding of the American colonies an intelligence unit became part of the 

continental army in 1775.  Intelligence activities targeted the indigenous aboriginal population the 

colonies found in the Americas due to the internal slave trade.  All intelligence operations done on 

the indigenous aboriginal population were supposedly "shut down" at the end of Civil War in 1865.  

The tragedies that occurred after the Civil War changed the path of America and its move away 

from institutionalized slavery.  The whole system of US corporate government utilizing citizens as 

a commodity evolved out of the American colonial mercantilism of chattel slavery which 

considered the POW/slave to be a nonperson and insured human property.  The failure of the 

Haitian Revolution was that it failed to liberate the indigenous aboriginal populations of the 

Americas.  Even though Haiti won its independence their fate was still tied to the failure of the 

indigenous aboriginal to rid themselves of the American colonies operating under the Doctrine of 

Discovery.  The Doctrine of Discover was expanded under Manifest Destiny and the Monroe 

Doctrine.  Even though Haiti defeated the institutionalized slavery in 1804 on July 28, 1915 a new 

form returned to its shores.    

   

After the success of Haitian Revolution, Haiti tried to end the institution of slavery in the Americas 

and was viewed as a threat by .  Haiti helped liberate South America with Simon Bolivar yet he 



reneged on his promise of the bourgeoisie class to free the slave.  Haiti also sent Denmark Vesey 

to end slavery in America but his attempt was stopped by what would later develop into the Boule 

class.  The Haitian Revolution was actually a failure because the mission of Jean Jacques 

Dessalines was to free all slaves within the American hemisphere.  Haiti never attacked America 

directly but the majority of the slave revolts were started by Haitians or those inspired by its 

successful revolution.      

Washington DC dominated Haiti during a 19 year US military occupation from 1915 to 1934 led 

by USMC Major General Smedley D. Butler.  The Duvalier class in Haiti emerged out of the 

gyndamire which was installed during the 1915 occupation by Washington DC.  The 

government/Duvalier class in power in Haiti, which is on the Washington DC payroll, is very 

similar to the Boule class in the US.  The Boule is a secret permanent overclass within the 

"AfricanAmerican" class created by Washington DC to "manage" "black" Americans.  A major 

difference between the Duvalier class in Haiti and the Boule class in the US is that the former is 

openly ruthless towards the population while the latter covertly works to keep their black masses 

disenfranchised.   Another difference between the classes is the government/Duvalier class form a 

kakistocracy in Haiti while the Boule works within the infrastructure.  The Boule class in America 

may not be as openly ruthless as the Duvalier class in Haiti but they're more diabolical.  The Boule 

and Duvalier class also work together to control the elections and government in Haiti.  The Boule 

and Duvalier worked together in Haiti during the disastrous humanitarian efforts after the 

earthquake of 2010 and established the IHRC.  It was the Boule president Barrack Obama who 

used his influence to convince the Haitian government turn over their power to IHRC.  Both classes 

receive their perspectives, objectives, and directives from Washington DC..  

The centralized government of the US has always been trying to rid the American continent of the 

indigenous aboriginal civilizations due to the Doctrine of Discovery.  The truth about the 

TransAtlantic Slave Trade is that it actually happened in reverse.  American colonization society 

formed in 1816 and established a colony in Liberia, Africa for colonized black Americans to be 

sent to.  In January 1817 the first free black convention was held in Philadelphia to strongly oppose 

the American Colonization Society and released the official statement:  "we are not Africans, we 

are free Americans, we demand our rights as American citizens, we do not want to be sent out of 

this country."  The beginning of the Abolitionist Movement was actually unpopular because they 

not only wanted to free slaves and make them equal citizens; they demanded "negroes" must be 

recognized as Americans and given their full rights as Americans.  

Despite all the discrimination and prejudice the communities of indigenous aboriginal population 

still prospered because they worked together.  Once the American government  realized the 

indigenous aboriginal population was still prospering due to the silver rights movement they 

decided to go into business with a certain demographic.  Instead of silver rights they purposed the 

Civil Rights act of 1875 for the indigenous population which was about Indians.  This was the 

beginning of the Boule once the racist white Americans who hijacked the government after the 

Civil War became afraid of elite "negroes" uplifting others so they separated them.  The Boule 

were also the first agents of what would develop into the Counter Intelligent Program 

(COINTELPRO).  The US government is good at social engineering, spying and population 

control because it had time to perfect it's tyranny on the indigenous population.  



The Boule motto is they're gonna save black people but they're actually gettin a lot of negroes 

killed thru their ignorance of the overall  exploitation of "black" people.  The black "secret society" 

known as the Boule' aka Sigma Pi Phi Fraternity, Incorporated, was founded on May 15, 1904 in 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.  Unbeknownst to many the Boule is the 1st black fraternity in America 

and was started before the 1st black "college" frat, Alpha Phi Alpha Fraternity, Incorporated, which 

wasn't founded until December 4, 1906.  They wanted to create an organization modeled after the 

tenants of the Skull and Bones of Yale which they couldn't partake of cause they were black.  

They're also responsible for the creation of the "divine" 9 black fraternities and sororities beginning 

in 1906 with Alpha Phi Alpha.  All colllegiate BGLO's fall under their umbrella and is where most 

of their members are recruited from.  Boule sounds french but is derived from ancient greek lower 

house and means advisor to the king.  The first Social Engineering program conducted by the DC 

intelligence was the creation of the "African-American".  After the Civil War during the 

Reconstuction Era history was changed in order to continue the denationalization of the indigenous 

aboriginal population.  There is a major misconception that HBCU's (Historically Black Colleges 

& Universities) were independantly started by propsperous "African-Americans".  These 

institutions were in fact founded by the American bourgouise class who benefitted from 

institutionalized slavery such as the Rockefellers and Julius Rosenwald.   The elite class created 

and financed HBCU's and used the Boule as a front.  They used the Boule' to staff these institutions 

of "Higher Learning" and indoctrinate "African Americans" into the black studies program.  This 

is  the continuation of mind control tactics, which would later develop into MK Ultra, Washington 

DC Intelligence agencies had been using on the indigenous aboriginal population they found in the 

Americas in order to take their land.  The black studies program and pan-africanism are false 

paradigms created for the indoctrination of African Americans to Africa.  

  

The Boule class were responsible for keeping the indigenious aboriginal American population 

brainwashed and complaint while the colonies established a white powered infrastructure around 

them.  Avid Pan-Africanist Steve Cokley was the first man to expose the boule to black America.  

He accidentally became aware of the Boule due to an article written on July 18, 1990 by the LA 

Times.  According to Cokley "we find in the same period, as the founding of the Boule', the 

founding of the 4 black male (Alpha Phi Alpha, Kappa Alpha Psi, Omega Psi Phi, and Phi Beta 

Sigma) and 4 black female (Alpha Kappa Alpha, Delta Sigma Theta, Zeta Phi Beta, and Sigma 

Gamma Rho) college-based fraternities and sororities;  We also find the founding of the NAACP 

and Urban League."   "It was neccessary to institute a group of blacks who had a vested interest in 

protecting the white power infrastructure"  

  

The main ideology at play among negroes at the time came from Booker T. Washington who 

started the Tuskeggee Institute and was targeted by the Boule.  His Racial Accomadation Theory 

of proffessed black folks should drop their buckets where they were at and nation build in America.  

There was a pluarility of black towns n communities prospering at the time networking among 

each other.  There werealso a variety of black grassroots organizations at the time following him.  

Washington DC was known for policies which marginalized negroes and the majority of the 

indiginious didn't want to associate with the US.  Due to Jim Crow and systematic  aparthied 

negroes stuck together and the dollar circulated within their communities 100 times before it left.  



The US elite which had made there money off of institutionalized slavery was looking to exploit 

them for more wealth so they started pushing integration.  

  

WEB Dubois was the first to coin the terms "African-American" and "talented tenth" which the 

Boule is supposedly composed of.   He was also the first "African-American" to get a PHD from 

Harvard and authored the Souls of Black Folk .  Known as the father of the Pan-African movement 

in America, he called for a return to Africa based on the Out of Africa Theory by Melville.   He 

also created the Niagra Movement to oppose Booker T Washington and fight for Civil Rights.  

After the Springfield, Illinois riots WEB Dubois formed the NAACP out of the Niagra Movement 

on February 12, 1909, with jewish NYC liberals Mary White Ovington, William English Walling, 

Henry Moskowitz, Oswald Garrison Villard , Moorfield Storey and Joel Spingarn (liberal jews) as 

a Civil Rights and Legal organization.  The NAACP developed out of the Niagra Movement which 

was created to combat Booker T. Washington.  The NAACP was the first interacial organization 

to fight racism with Dubois serving as the only African-American executive.  The NAACP is part 

of the is analagous to the black lives matter movement which was started and funded by George 

Soros.  This is how the elite infrastructure within the US control "black" people by creating and 

funding black institutions in order to maintain control of the "black" infrastructure.  

The NAACP is actually part of COINTELPRO and was organized to represent a form of nationally 

centralized black leadership.  It is presented as an organization to advance justice for 

AfricanAmerican oppression  but is actually utilized to spy and sabotage their efforts.  The NAACP 

was the first organization to orchestrate the Civil Rights Movement and have participated in 

socially engineering black people since they were denationalized.  The name of the organization; 

National Association for the Advancement of Coloured People automatically denationalizes 

members because coloured people have no nation.  The founders of the NAACP were actually 

spies working for working for Washington DC to monitor and infiltrate "African-American" 

communities.  WEB Dubois was actually a prominent  Boule member and the founding member 

of the NYC chapter.  Members of Boule pose as Freedom Fighters or Civil Rights Activists on the 

surface yet are actually spies for Washington DC and operating for personal gain.  The NAACP 

headquaters is located in Baltimore, Maryland and each member of the Boule must take a lifetime 

membership, but the building isn't owned by any members.  The co-founders of the NAACP were 

actually jewish spies.  

  

Joel Spingarn who was very influential in the founding of the NAACP and Boule was actually a 

Jewish spy.  He was a descendant of one of the elite families who benefitted from the institution 

of slavery.  Joel Spingarn was commissioned in the US Army and served as a Major during WWI.  

He was hired in May 1918 by the Military Intelligence Division(MID) from 1918-42 and ran "a 

small unit of undercover agents" looking for proof of subversion among black community.  The 

MID opened 100,000 pieces of mail a week and monitored negroe publications.  The Military 

Information Division(MID) was the first military intelligence branch of the  US Department of 

War 1885-1903.  It was repurposed in 1942 into the Military Intelligence Service which consists 

of an Administrative group, Intelligence group, Counter Intelligence group, Operations group.  

According to the Memphis Commercial Appeal documents revealed that Joel Spingarn remained 

NAACP chairman during his tenure at MID.  He used the post to obtain crtrical information for 

MID, list of 32,000 members, and launch a vicious attack against the UNIA.  



  

The Secretary of War Newton D Baker (CFR), under president Woodrow Wilson's from 1916 to 

1921, ordered Lt Col Ralph Van Deman, Army Spy Network, which dates back to May 3, 1911. 

to set up a Black Intelligence unit to monitor ‘Negro Unrest’.  Lt Ralph Van Deman, known as the 

father of American military intelligence and inductee in the Military Intelligence Hall of Fame, is 

the one who hired "jewish" spy Joel Spingarn to "watch" (spy) the Afrikan community. Joel 

Spingarn then created the NAACP long with WEB Dubois.   The Boule are secret gate keepers for 

the elite Washington DC power infrastructure and their job is to spy, pacify, guide and manage 

black folks.  The NAACP initiated the Anti-Lynching Bill in 1919 but Washington DC didn't pass 

the Bill until 1959, almost 40 years later.   Reason being Washington DC actually batared the 

passage of the Anti-Lynching Bill with the NAACP for intelligence on the black community.  

Washington DC maintains a clandestine control of their "African-American" population utilizing 

the Boule' and the NAACP.  According to the archive, Federal Surveillance of Afro-Americans 

(1917-1925), Washington D.C.'s General Intelligence Division (anti-radical division) aka The 

Bureau of Investigation (B.O.I.) which was renamed the Federal Bureau of Investigation) in 1935 

was a precursor to COINTELPRO.  In 1924 J. Edgar Hoover, special assistant of the Attorney 

General, was made head of the scandal ridden BOI division.  He begins coordinating clandestine 

activities within "African-American" communities in what devoloped into the COINTELPRO 

operation.   Boule members such as Phillip A Randolph or Thurgood Marshall were part of 

Hoover's spy network.  Steve Cokely exposed the direct link between the U.S. government, the 

Boule' and the NAACP.  He is the one who pointed out the fact that each member of the Boule 

must take a lifetime membership to the NAACP.  According to him "anywhere there are prominent 

black professionals, chances are they're in the boule;  70%-75% of all black male lawyers are 

members of the secret society....virtually every black mayor, congressman, banker or millionaire 

in America are members of the boule".  All of the members of the CBC are Boule.  

In 1988 Steve Cokley was forced to resign as an aide to Chicago Mayor Eugene Sawyer.  He was 

targeted by the Anti-Defamation League for "anti-semmetic" statements he made at a Louis 

Farrakhan rally.  Many "black" leaders have been attacked and lost their position because of this 

accusation by the Anti-Defamation League.  Khalid Muhammed was expelled from the Nation of 

Islam for the same reason.  The American bourgouise and Washington DC utilize their Intelligence 

Agencies to comprimise the "African-American" class in every which way.  The Jesuits and the 

Jews are also utilized to subjagate the black communities.  They created the The Anti-Defamation 

League (ADL) and Southern Poverty Law Center (SPLC) to use Anti-Semitism as a rallying force 

and to gain power within US.  The ADL and SPLC were created to ensure that an organization 

would be in place where only jewish groups and interests would be protected.  The zionists are a 

movement for the reesteblishment, development, and protection of a jewish nation in what is now 

Israel.  It was established as a political organization in 1897 under Theodore Herzl.  The 

colonization of the Middle East by Israel is the continuation of the policy of Doctrine of Discovery 

practiced by Washington DC.  What's ironic is that the ADL, SPLC and the NAACP were all 

created and financed by the same people.  The genius of this scheme is that the NAACP is used as 

front to spy and subjagate the black community, while the ADL  use anti-semitism to cover 

themselves and get rid of any "black" leaders they want.  

In 1917 Lt. Col. Ralph VonDemon, Army Spy Network, set up a negro spy network under direct 

orders from U.S. Secretary of War Newton D. Baker; the former "progressive" democratic Mayor 



of Cleveland, Ohio from 1912-1915.  This spy unit was dominated by BOULÉ members, because 

the Army had to recruit Negros who they felt could be trusted. Newton D Baker's assistant was 

Emmit J Scott(Boule) who served as Special Adviser of "Black" Affairs and was the highest 

ranking "African American" in president Woodrow Wilson's administration.  Emmit J Scott 

functioned as part of this unit and worked very closely with jewish spy, co-founder of the NAACP, 

Joel Spingarn.  Scott also worked with Booker T Washington on the Tuskegee Institute and was 

used to spy on him.  He used his position, charm, and intelligence to persuade many Negroes to 

join the Armed forces go to war for Washington DC during WWI.  He did this at a time when 

lynching picnics were still a regular feature of oppression within the US.  He was later rewarded 

for his actions by being made a Grand Sire Archon within the BOULÉ in 1941.  He also served as 

Commissioner to Liberia under the Taft administration.  Avid Pan-Africanist and Phi Beta Sigma 

alumni Robert R. Moton ( BOULÉ)  was the one who got Emmit J Scott his position with Newton 

D Baker. They were both associates who worked with Booker T. Wahington on the Tuskegee Inst..  

Robert R. Moton was made principal of the Tuskegee Inst after the death of Booker T. Wahington 

in 1915.  He was responsible for bringing the U.S. Army to the Tuskegee Inst. and the Tuskegee 

Expirement.   In fact Moton was the one who stopped Washington DC from having white doctors 

inject the syphillis and used Boule doctors instead.  He also covered up his Investigation of the 

Great Mississippi Flood, when "African-Americans" were imprisoned on the levee and forced to 

work at gunpoint, for Herbert Hoover.    

According to Federal Surveillance of Afro-Americans(1917-1925), in a memorandum dated 11 

October 1919, J. Edgar Hoover, special assistant to the Attorney General and head of the General 

Intelligence Division (or "anti-radical division") of The Bureau of Investigation, wrote to Special 

Agent Ridgely regarding Marcus Garvey: "Unfortunately, however, he (Garvey) has not as yet 

violated any federal law whereby he could be proceeded against on the grounds of being an 

undesirable alien, from the point of view of deportation."  Sometime around November 1919, the 

BOI began an investigation into the activities of Garvey and the UNIA. Toward this end, the BOI 

hired James Edward Amos, Arthur Lowell Brent, Thomas Leon Jefferson, James Wormley Jones, 

and Earl E. Titus as its first five African-American agents.  The Boule were also the first agents of 

what developed into the Counter Intelligent Program (COINTELPRO).  They were recruited by 

the Bureau Of Investigation (BOI) to spy on the UNIA for J Edgar Hoover.  

Marcus Garvey originally started The UNIA as a vocational school modeled after Booker T 

Washington and the Tuskegee Inst..   Garvey decided to turn the UNIA into a black nation building 

program with a membership goal of 400,000,000.  It's motto was 1 God, 1 Aim, 1 Destiny.  He 

opened his first chapter of unia  in harlem on september 1917.  Garvey called established black 

leaders weak and self serving...Garvey toured the country and established UNIA branches all over 

the US gaining pledges to support his nation building program.  Anyone could join and he used 

the red/black/ green flag to represent a black nation in the making.  By 1919 the UNIA had 

ballooned into 30 branches globally and 2 million members worldwide without the help of 

television or radio.  Garvey noticed that blacks contributed 220 million in liberty bonds to the war 

effort of WWI so he started investment funds to open black businesses which were financed thru 

purchase of stock.  He tried to start separate economy of black owned businesses.  The UNIA 

employed 1000 people in harlem and the publication the Negro World was also the most popular 

black newspaper in in the world.  The same year Garvey began publishing and distributiong the 

Negro World , a meeting was held on Aug 17 in washington dc.  The premire boule editors of 



black newspapers such as The Amsterdam News, the Chicago Defender, The Pittsburgh Courier, 

The Baltimore were in attendance and masonic orders were given to not discuss Marcus Garvey 

or his movement in their papers to disway followeres.     

Marcus Garvey's ideology was to create a black powered infrastructure to compete with the white 

one. He is on record stating "If the oil of Afrika is good for Rockefeller's interest; if iron is good 

for Carnegie trust; then these minerals are good for us. Why should we allow wall street and the 

capitalist group of america and other countries exploit our country when they refuse to give us a 

fair chance in the countries of our adoption?  Why should not Afrika give to the world its black 

Rockefeller, Rothschild, and Henry Ford?"  The reason Washington DC was so dangerous was 

because he was member of Prince Hall masonry.  Garvey broke away and formed the UNIA as a 

fraternal order which he modeled after a masonic order with revised ideals needed for 

selfpersavation.  He mixed his knowledge of masonry with political ideals and significant 

benevolance for the secret evolution of the fraternal idea from its early craft stage into a potent 

political vehicle, based on the organization of secret revolutionary brotherhoods.  

Garvey and the ideals of the UNIA clashed with other African American leaders because  it was 

profitting of the  "back to Africa" movement at the time.  He was a target of WEB Dubois because 

his organization followed the tenets of Booker T Washington.  WEB Dubois (Boule) called Garvey 

a gorilla and monkey in order to Tarzanine his movement.  Garvey criticized the NAACP and 

many black leaders asserting they only sought assimuilation into white society.  The true reason 

for Marcus Garvey's strong stance and formation of UNIA was international black economic 

independence.  He realized after being exploited for their wealth, labor and denationalized by 

Washington DC the successful acquisition of wealth by the Boule class within the system was only 

there to highlight that endemic Institutional Racism which blocks "African-American" 

advancement collectively does not exist.  Because of jewish control over the black dollar and 

jewish merchandise ubiquitous in all black neighborhoods of major northern cities and a network 

of stores throughout the south like Neiman-Marcus, Sears-Roebuck, Zales, Rich's. Garvey was not 

only attacked by the Boulefor but also for anti-semitism for simply wanting to establish an 

economic foundation for black progress.  

This COINTELPRO program is designed to eliminate the next "Black Messiah" who would 

emancipate the mentally enslaved African.  The Messiahnic force refers to Marcus Garvey who is 

the prototype J Edgar Hoover repurposed COINTELPRO to target.  W.E.B. Dubois has stated on 

record that "the Boule was created to keep the black professional away from the types of Marcus 

Garvey".  According to Steve Cokely "the importance to steal the black professional away from 

Marcus Garvey because an Afrocentric organization that articulated and captured the black 

professional would give no safe haven in the black community, to the Boule'  the remaking of the 

house negro was necessary to build a group of negroes who had an investment in protecting the 

white system as produced by having stolen this land.  This is post reconstruction. Taking away the 

articulate negro, now desiring to replace them with organized institutions to keep them away from 

self improvement."  The Boulé were ordered to destroy Garvey’s organisation by any means, 

because its success would have set the precedent that Africans could take control of their land and 

mineral wealth with a focus on using their resources for themselves worldwide. WEB Dubois along 

with other NAACP members organized  the "Garvey Must Go" campaign.  The Boule colluded 

with the US government to sabotage his Black Star Line and start the Harlem Rennaissance to 

oppose the UNIA presence in harlem.  



Washington DC feared Marcus Garvey's influence on "negroe" veterans returning after WWI with 

high expectations looking look 4 change. The US government feared his appeal to digruntled 

blacks.  Marcus Garvey rejected what he saw occurring in the US militantly and Wahington DC 

didn't want "African-Americans" to have militant demand for inclusion or rejection of policies.  As 

an acting agent on behalf of the Boule', NAACP, and BOI, Robert R. Moton attended several 

Garvey meetings and reported his ideas to the United States Government.  Marcus Garvey knew 

that in Liberia there were massive trees that drip sap. This sap is the main element used to make 

tires for automobiles. The Rubber Industry was just beginning to boom and Garvey saw this as an 

opportune time for the UNIA to have a stake in the global economy using a natural resource from 

Africa.  In one of his lectures on the Boule', Steve Cokely stated Robert Moton was given $5million 

by the U.S. Government and instructed to counter Garvey; offering $5 per acre over his $1 per acre 

bid. This inevitably blocked Garveyz deal as he was underhandedly outbid by Moton.  In 1926, 

Firestone opened up its' rubber factory base in Liberia which gave them a lease of 100 years.  

Firestone/Bridgestone made the $5million paid on the land well within the first 5 years of operation 

and wouldn't have gotten this deal without Robert R. Moton spying and interceding on Marcus 

Garvey!  

The UNIA was full of black agents working for Boule or the BOI  to sabotage the efforts of Marcus 

Garvey.  For instance the man hired to inspect the ship for the Black Star Line was an informant 

for J Edgar Hoover and decieved him about the condition of the ship.  The captain made him pay 

6 time it's value for kickbacks and he was misled by his handlers in this important purchase.  

Although initial efforts by the BOI were to find grounds upon which to deport Garvey as "an 

undesirable alien", a charge of mail fraud was brought against Garvey in connection with stock 

sales of the Black Star Line after the U.S. Post Office and the Attorney General joined the 

investigation.  Attorney General Palmer created a Special Division of the Justice Department that 

worked with the  General Intelligence Division to shut dow Garvey and his organization.  Marcus 

Garvey was indicted in 1923 for mail fraud charges connected to the Black Star Line and convicted 

in 1925.  He spent 2 years in federal prison and was pardoned and deported by President Calvin 

Coolidge in 1927.  Upon his imprisonment COINTELPRO destroyed his movement and started 

the Harlem Rennaissance to counter it.  

 All of this early spying on the "African-American" community is what developed into the 

COINTELPRO program.   WEB DuBois was also the first "African-American" to write for the 

Round Table Group's offspring, the Council on Foreign Relations, magazine Foreign Affairs. 

Foreign Affairs published a series of articles in 1925 by DuBois.  1921 the CFLR is founded, by 

Paul Warburg, to direct washington DC foreign policy.  The black intellectuals of the Boule class 

helped to indoctrinate the black masses into fighting for integration without reparations.  WEB 

DuBois, one of the founders of the NAACP, which was also started, owned and operated by the 

Round Table Group.  All these organizations were working under strict dictation from the Round 

Table Group.  America is a land of Secrets, the Round Table Group is a secret society started by 

Cecil B Rhodes and Lord Nathan Rothschild in the late 1800s.  Secret Societies formed from the 

bourgouise which profitted of the institution of slavery run America.  This elite class developed 

the infrastructure of Washington DC to their benefit.  The Trilateral Commission and Board of 

Council of Foreign Relations (CFR) which dictate US foreign policy were also started by Cecil 

Rhodes and Lord Rothschild.  Most members of the US government belong to a secret society in 

some type of way.  The 13 elite families rule Masonic lodges whose branches are fraternal orders 



and sororities.  Control by the Masonic secret societies is maintained systematically using the 10 

Areas of People Activity:  Economics, Education, Entertainment, Labor, Law, Politics, Sex, 

Religion, War, and, Health.  The fact is that most of the materially successful African Americans 

in the USA and African Diaspora have pledged their allegiance to the Boule Masonic Lodges.  

Steve Cokely stated that the reason Secret Societies are so dangerous is because members are 

initiated and take oaths  to organizations whom they're more loyal to than their own families which 

is dangerous for the community.  President John F. Kennedy warned about the CIA and secret 

societies also.  The CIA came up with term conspiracy theory to discredit investigations into the 

Kennedy assassination.  A free people can't have true government with members of secret socities 

in them because they have hidden agendas.    

Three generations of Kings were targeted for political neutralization by Yarborough and his 

successor J Edgar Hoover.   MLK's father and grandfather were both shotgun priests and targeted 

for surveillance by Washington DC under COINTELPRO because they fought for negroe rights.  

Martin Luther King was actually part of the Boule class which led the fight  for integration during 

the Civil Rights Era.  The majority of "negroes" at the time didn't want to integrate into the US.  

The Boule class are more dangerous and diabolical than they seem.  Washington DC intelligence 

and the Boule class used MLK to lead the indiginious aboriginal population into the Civil Rights 

Movement.  The Civil Rights Era tricked the indiginious aboriginal population into giving up their 

birthrights with "Civil-Rights" and integrating into 'white society".  The FreeMasonry organization 

started by Albert Pike, the KKK established the White Citizens Council for States Rights and 

Racial Integrity 1954 in Delta, Mississippi.  The councils purpose was to preserve white political 

power and combat the Civil Rights Movement and integration.  Members consisted of bankers, 

politicians, business owners soon joined the council and chapters spread accross the state and South.  

The White Citizens Council punished people who supported integration or black voting rights by 

foreclosing mortgages, firing workers, refusing loans to farmers and practiced gerrymeandering 

among other things.  They also used their influence to push thru laws that would ensure continued 

white domination.  The Civil Rights Act was enacted on July 2, 1964.  

  

During the march on washington, Martin Luther King stated in the "I Have A Dream" speech  "that 

black people are exiled on their own land".  This is a perplexing riddle for those who don't 

understand the true patterns of colonization within the Americas.  The first dictionary published in 

America in 1828 by Webster term describes the term Amer'ican as a noun that means native of 

Americas, which originally applied only to the aboriginals or copper-colored people found here by 

European colonizers, but now applied to the descendents of Europeans born in America.  Their 

descendants reclassified as negro, black, African-American have become domesticated to become 

alien to their land of inheritance.  It was a melanated indiginious aboriginal autochnuous  

population Christopher Colon encountered and tried to subjagate on the island of Hispianola under 

the Doctrine of Discovery.  Europeans used the status "white"  to steal and assume the identity of 

the tru indiginious aboriginal American autochnuous population which washington dc 

denationalized with the terms Indian, 1492 ; negro,1832; black,1965 ; negro,1900 ; colored,1950 ; 

Afro-American, 1970.   It wasn't until the Reconstruction Era when history was reconstructed and 

the indoctrination of "negroes" with the fallacy that they were all from Africa.  The American 

Boule class actually work with washington DC to keep "African-Americans" miseducated about 

their true origin.  Alex Haley (Boule) is responsible for the movie Roots which worked to imprint 



the slave narrative into the minds of black people in the 1980's.  He also wrote the the 

Autobiography of Malcolm X.  Alex Haley presented the story of Kunta Kinte and Roots as 

authentic yet it was later found out that he plagiarized the whole story from the African by Harold 

Colander, a white author!  A major job of the Boule class is to push the narrative that 

"AfricanAmericans" are from Africa.  This tactic was one of the first form of mind controls 

performed on the indiginious aboriginal population by the intelligence agencies of Washington DC.     

  

The secret Citizens Committee to Investigate the FBI COINTELPRO files revealed:  the overall 

impression in directives written by Hoover, other headquarters officials, and local FBI officials 

was that the FBI thought of black Americans as falling into two categories black people who should 

be spied on and black people who should spy on other black people for the FBI.”; it was required 

that agents recruit paid informers in black ghettos; not long after MLK's I Have a Dream speech, 

the assistant to the FBI director wrote: We must mark [King] now, if we have not before, as the 

most dangerous Negro in the future of this Nation, it may be unrealistic to limit (our actions against 

King) to legalistic proofs that would stand up in court or before Congressional Committees;  

Malcom X could’ve been one, a memo noted, had he not been assassinated (something the FBI 

privately took credit for, after having exacerbated a factional split in the Nation of Islam), as could 

Martin Luther King, should he abandon his obedience to white liberal doctrines  of nonviolence 

and embrace black nationalism; An effective coalition of black nationalist groups  which, by the 

FBI’s definition, included virtually every civil rights organization might be the first step toward a 

real ‘Mau Mau’ in America, the beginning of a true black revolution, it read, referring to the 1950s 

anticolonial rebellion in British Kenya.  

Martin Luther King walked off of the Boule reservation in 1966 once he realized integration was 

a mistake.  During one of his last speeches MLK stated that "the American negro was integrating 

into a burning house".  MLK saw the hypocrisy of Washington, DC and their continued 

exploitation of "black" people.  The main purpose of integration was to harness the black dollar.  

It destroyed the network of black bussiness in which the dollar circulated 100times!  The creation 

of Free Trade Agreements would allow foriegners to operate in black neghborhoods for profit.  

Black Americans integrated into "white" schools and european history with no political or 

economic base.  Integration was the final  death nil for black Americans because it was a 

continualization of the colonial process which the American colonies had enacted on the 

indiginious aboriginal population; as MLK said black people were still in exile on their own land.  

The job of the Boule is to brainwash negroes and integrate them into this burning house.  Most 

people didn't understand what he meant at the time but the meaning of that aphorism is basically; 

African Americans integrated into a system which is killing them.  But what is so diabolical about 

it is that they were tricked into fighting for integration non-violently.  It is only with the passage 

of time and studying the results of integration which make this point observable.  MLK started the 

PPC campaign which was primarily focused on getting "black" Americans their restitution and he 

was assassinated on April 4, 1968, the same month he was supposed to go occuppy Washington 

DC.  

The Boule have been involved in both the organising and commissioning of the operatives that 

performed the assassinations of both Malcom X and Martin Luther King; as well as many other 

acts of despicable treachery against progressive "African" leaders and communities in both the 



USA and the Diaspora.  According to William E Pepper author of Orders to Kill -The Truth Behind 

the Murder of Martin Luther King, Jr published in 1995 by Warner Books:  "Under direction from 

the white house, Army chief of staff General Harold K Johnson and Assistant Chief of Staff for 

Intelligence General William P Yarborough, with the help of other intelligence assets within the 

United States Gvt , assembled a sohpisticated apparatus designed and used to infiltrate Black 

Militant orgsaniations and Dr. Kings own non-violent protest organiation, to develop anti-King 

propaganda and provide around the clock surveillance of Dr King himself." (COINTELPRO) 

"Information provided by two former Special Forces NCO's the activation and deployment of US 

Army Special Forces personnel, including snipers, from the Reserve's 20th Special Forces Group 

(Airborne) to form a seret "Alpha" Team on the night of MLK's assassination.  Their mission was 

to deploy from Camp Shelby to Memphis on a covert operation posing as civilians.  It was 

understood that the two snipers would "shoot to kill" Dr. Martin Luther King and Reverend 

Andrew Young."  The majority of the leaders of the Civil Rights era were Boule.  It was the 

Reverend Billy Kyles (Boule) who led MLK to the balcony that night and thru a telecasted freudian 

slip admitted that he moved away from Dr. King to allow the assassin to get a clear shot.  Jesse 

Jackson also accompanied MLK on the balcony that night.  The assassination of Martin Luther 

King, Jr. was actually a covert operation under COINTELPRO involving the Boule and 

washington DC. When you move up the ladder to special operation "hierarchical degrees" of a 

Jesse Jackson or Billy Kyles involving the assassinations of public figures, you must go through a 

higher degree of security and secrecy; and another higher degree of secret initiation; word is Jesse 

Jackson was promised the presidency for his participation by DC.  Malcolm X was another 

"renegade" who was assassinated by the FBI under COINTELPRO with the assisstance of the NOI.   

It isn't clear what the degrees are for the Boule initiation rituals even at the lowest levels.   

  

A study of the patterns of colonization exposes how the Civil Rights Act was used to disenfranchise 

the indiginious aboriginal population of America by Washington DC and a their final death nil.  

What made MLK upset was the Homestead Acts and the that they were "integrating" with no 

compensation.  According to him:  "At the very same time that America refused to give the negro 

any land thru an act of congress our gov't was giving away millions of acres of land in the west n 

midwest which meant that it was willing to undergird it's white peasants from europe with an 

economic floor but not only did they give the land they built land grant colleges with gov't money 

to teach em how to farm; not only that they provided county agents to further their expertise in 

farming; not only that they provided low interest rates in order that they could mechanize their 

farms; not only that today many of these people are recieving millions of dollars in federal 

subsidies not to farm n they are the very people telling the black man that he ought to lift himself 

by his own bootstraps; this is what we are faced with, n this is the realty now when we come to 

washington in this campaign; we're coming to get our check..."    

  

The Homestead Acts of 1862; 1866; 1909 were "laws of the lands" which allowed Europeans to 

come to America by millions beginning in the 1790's.  Under these Homestead Acts the indiginious 

aboriginal population were coerced or kidnapped into being utilized as indentured servants to 

enrich their former American colonies. The Homestead Acts plan to accomodate "negroes" was 

for them to be given the opportunity to buy 40 acre lots after working the land for 3 years which 

rarely materialized.  Federal programs like the Pre-emption Act of 1830, Mineral Leasing Act and 



many similar state programs were used to confiscate land belonging to the indiginious aboriginal 

population and given exclusively to the "white" class.  Beginning with the Emancipation  

Proclamation in 1865 over 250 million acres of land were given away to the "white" class with 643 

acres going to each family.  Ever since the Homestead Acts immigrants have been allowed to 

migrate to America by Washington DC to to disenfranchise the indiginious aboriginal population, 

the tru Americans, from their own land.  In Europe only the very rich owned land but these Acts 

gave them the opportunity to come to the US pick out territory for 10 bucks.  Washington DC also 

gave enormous amounts of land to railroad companies.  What is ironic is the use of the Statue of 

Liberty, which depicts a "black" woman, to greet  European immigrants coming to further 

disenfranchise the indiginious aboriginal population.  

   

The Berlin conference of July 3,1881 was where Europe carved up Africa for themselves;  

denationalized the indiginious aboriginal population;  and planned it's exploitation.  The Native 

Land Acts used to disenfranchise the indiginious aboriginal South African, under the system of 

Apartheid are equivalent to the US Homestead Acts.  The colonization patterns of South Africa 

reveals what a mistake the Civil Rights Movement and "integration" of "African-Amercans" into 

the US infrastructure was for them.  At the Convention of Madrid in 1882 the Madrid System of 

internationally recognized trademarks, the "white" powered infrastructure began using trademarks 

to disenfranchise indiginious aboriginal people.  In 1890, Cecil B. Rhodes became Prime Minister 

of the Cape Colony. He introduced the Glen Grey Act to push black people from their lands and 

make way for industrial development.  The growing number of enfranchised black people in the 

Cape Colony led Cecil B Rhodes to raised the traditional Cape Qualified Franchise requirements 

in 1892.  By simultaneously limiting the amount of land black Africans were legally allowed to 

hold while tripling the property qualifications required to vote, Rhodes succeeded in 

disenfranchising the black population.  In addition, Rhodes was an early architect of The Black 

Land Act of June 1913, which would limit the areas of the country that the indiginious aboriginal 

Africans were allowed to less than 10%.  The apartheid system in Africa rose simultaneously with 

a series Jim Crow Laws.  The Black Land Act of 1913 formerly known as Native Land Act of June 

1913 is identical to the Homestead Acts which were used to marginalize the indiginious population 

of the Americas.  It was aimed at regulating the acquisition of land by indiginious aboriginal 

Africans.  The 1913 act allowed for territorial segregation of indiginious aboriginal Africans and 

made it illegal to work with whites as sharecroppers which allowed for 80% of these lands to be 

cleared of native africans and sold to white afrikaners at cheap rates.  The indiginious aboriginal 

Africans were sharecroppers until the Native Land Acts of 1913 removed them to reserves and 

forced them into industrial servant labouring positions for white afrikaners.  

The Development Trust and Land Act of 1936, formerly known as the Native Trust and Land Act 

of 1936 was based on the reccomendations of the Beaumont Commission.  It's purpose was to 

make provisions for the acquisition and occupation of land by natives and other persons.  It resulted 

in the enlargement of Native African reserves by 13%.  The Afrikaner party established in 1948 

created an all white government as an institution of the church which lawfully granted land to male 

heads of the household by law systematically by then removing black males by jail, death, war, the 

government could acquire rights to abandoned land under colour of law.  The South African 

Population Registration Act of 1950 is the same as the North American Equal Employment 

Oppurtunity Act of 1972.  The patterns of colonization of the Apartheid system in Africa followed 



the the American system in that it deprived the indiginious aboriginal populations most of their 

land. Hitlers Mein Kampf praised Americas institutional racism and modeled the Nazi party after 

aspects of it.  The tides turned with the Black Communities Development Act 1984 when native 

africans refused to integrate into or work for the Apartheid system.  That is the major difference 

between the patterns of colonization of South Africa and North America.  Due to the fact that the 

South Africans didn't integrate into the apartheid system they're able to get their land back. The 

system of Apartheid was repealed on June 30th 1991 with the Abolition of Racially Based Land 

Measures Act.  The Civil Rights Era coerced the indiginious aboriginal population into integrating 

into the system which originally disenfranchised them without compensation.  Even the South 

African revolution was not successsful because by leaving the infrastructure in control of their 

former oppressors, Nelson Mandela and the head of the ANP betrayed the ANC.  Today SA make 

up 80% of the population but the latest land audit shows they possess only 4% of all farms and 

agricultural holdings by individual land holders.  The fact is the SA "white" infrastructure is asking 

for compensation for stolen land like when France demanded reparations from Haiti for lost 

"human" property but when it's time for black compensation it's different.  Utilizing their 

COINTELPRO tactics globally, Washington D.C./CIA assassinated every black nationalist on the 

planet n replaced them with kakistocracies led by their neo-colonialist puppets.  

  

Martin Luther King Jr could have been the first Boule president if he kept playing by the rules of 

Washington DC but President Barrack Obama recieved that honour.  Jesse Jackson was part of the 

Boule deception which helped African President Barrack Obama get elected.  During his term 

President Obama passed the Rights of Indiginios People  and the false Native American tribes were 

awarded a billion dollars in early sept 2015.  Over 645 tribes won trials against the US Department 

of Justice awarding 940 million.  The US feared that under his administration the population 

mislabeled "African-American" would discover their true history;  bloodline; heritage and be 

forced to grant them reparations and land.   Therefore Washington DC silently declared a deadline 

of December 31, 2014 for them to make land and identity claims.  The fear of millions of  "African-

Americans" waking up to the true identities and stating I'm not black i want my land and restitution.  

There are over 700 million acres of confiscated lands being held in held in trust for indiginious 

aboriginal Americans mislabeled "African-Americans".  

After the assassination of MLK the Boule used Jesse Jackson to brainwash the "African-American" 

masses.  Jesse Jackson would go on to help popularize the term "African-American" and with this 

action help to "Africanize" the aboriginal indiginious population right off their land.  The Boule 

members know that this is a false term meant to confuse the true indiginious aboriginals of America.  

He knew they were originally referred to as Indians because he worked with Martin  

Luther King.  The term "African-American" has only existed for the last 25 years prior to that the 

"American-Negro" was labeled; 1492 indian; 1832 negro; 1965 black; 1900 negro; 1950 colored; 

1970 Afro-American; 1988 african american; 2020 foreigner?   After the passage of the Civil 

Rights Act, Jesse Jackson utilized his organizations to extort corporations for 

violating :AfricanAmerican" rights.  He was also connected to drug activities and started the 

Rainbow Coalition with Bill Clinton.  The policy choices both democrats and republicans have 

made since the Civil Rights Era replaced social welfare policies with punitive measures in 

"African-American" communities.   The Jewish financial elite are behind the Boule and prop them 

up as phoney black leadership class in positions of influence and wealth.  Their role is to protect 



their sponsors and perpetuate their hegemony. Genuine leaders like MLK and Malcolm X who 

Forgot their place on the Washington DC plantation are eliminated.  The George Soros Jewish 

funded Black Lives Matter Movement works the same way as the NAACP and is a continuation 

of Washington DC controling African Americans thru a liberal agenda.  Sixty years after the 

revelation of COINTELPRO, the FBI is still engaging in similar tactics, particularly with reports 

that the Bureau has tracked and monitored  

Black Lives Matter protesters.  Washington DC has been using it's intelligence apparatus since the 

inception of COINTELPRO to control the indiginious aboriginal American population thru social 

movements.  The Boule assists in these social manipulations as with the Black Panthers which was 

controlled opposition.  

MLK was actually marching for the rights of indigenious aboriginal Americans mislabeled Indians 

by their colonizers.  MLK knew they were exiled on their own land and that wealth in America is 

primarily determined by family lineage.  After the death of MLK President Johnson called in a 

special favor to congress and pushed thru the secret legislation which became the Rights of Indians, 

Public Law 90-284 April 11, 1968.  This law was about discriminatory acts committed against the 

indigenious American aboriginals; Chap 102 refers to them as aboriginals; Title II Rights of 

Indians..  After being denationalized by the American colonies "African Americans" became 

private property but were still considered to be   Indians in public capacity.  After the 

"Independence" of the colonies from Britian in 1783 the Virginia Co changed its' name to the 

United States of America.  The Va Co owns most of what we now call USA and any lands up to 

100 miles offshore including Bermuda and most of the caribbean except Haiti.  The VA Co has 

rights to 50% of all gold and silver mined on its land plus a percantage of minerals and other 

materials found.  The lands of the company were originally granted to the American colonies under 

a deed of trust.  The American colonies broke every treaty they made with the indiginious 

aboriginal population.  The land is under lease to the Va Co therefore they can't claim ownership 

of the land.  They can only pass on perpetual use of land to their heirs and sell the perpetual use of 

it but can never own it.  Ownership was retained by the British crown who established the VA Co 

colonies to cultivate tobacco with the Brutish Moors.  The indiginious aboriginal Americans are 

the original principal land owners even if the city or state took their land they're still owed and can 

recieve royaltie checks.  

  

Haiti thought it defeated capitalistic slavery on 1804 but an evolved version has returned to it's 

shores in 2010.  The American colonies originally only profited from the denationalization and 

enslavement, of the indiginious aboriginal autochnuous individual, who were considered private 

property during chattel slavery.  After the Civil War the US government was so upset with losing 

their slaves and former "property" without compensation, that they developed a system for 

washington DC to profit off of all their "citizens".  The Emancipation Proclamation didn't actually 

free the POW/slaves because it wasn't a manumission.  The indigenous aboriginal American 

population supposed to declare their nationality after the Civil War when Prez Lincoln opened up 

13th amend 21 sections and nullified 14th.  Once President Lincoln was assassinated, The 

Freedman's Bureau, which had created Freedman's Bank got their gold stolen.  Frederick Douglas 

tried to save Freedman's Bank after the assassination of President LincolnApril on 14, 1865 .  It's 

difficult to create a political powerbase without an economic one.  The indigenious aboriginal 

population was  betrayed by Washington DC and the President Andrew Johnson Comprimise with 



the South after Lincolns assassination.  The indiginious aboriginal autochnuous population  

reclassified as negro lost his birthright under the 13th amendment which just transferred them from 

private to public property of the U.S. government.  Never fully ridding the government of the 

institution of slavery laid the foundation for the washington DC in place today. The chartered 

federal company entitled US ie US inc. commercial agency originally designated as wash DC 

incorporated as a for profit commercial enterprise in the legis act of feb 21 1871  41st Congress.  

With the assassination of President Abraham Lincoln, vetoe of the freedmen's bureau bill and 

secret comprimise of 1877 effectively neutralized any gains the indiginious aboriginal population 

had made and continued their marginilization by the American government.  

  

The true patterns of colonization is not taught to "African Americans" under the Westernized model 

of education.   In North America it was in reverse, the American colonies were trying to clear the 

land of the "black" indigenious aboriginal population.  All of the European explorers who first 

came to the Americas the were shock to find it populated by what they described as Moors or  

Ethiopians.  For instance the Dutch West India Company, a trading and colonizing company, 

chartered by the States-General of the Dutch republic in 1621 and organized in 1623 followed the 

pattern of coloniation set by Christpher Colon.  The Dutch West India Company were among the 

first european nations to eastablish colonies in the Americas.  After 1674 it engaged primarily in 

the African slave trade utilizing colonies it still possessed in Guiana. Negroland which was 

established thru a partnership between them, England, Denmark in North Guiana Africa in 1729.  

They Dutch found out captured Indians they tried to enslave kept escaping.  It's very hard to enslave 

a man on his own land, so they began sending captured "Indians" to Negorland in Africa and then 

resettling them in the Americas in unfamiliar territory.    Many of the so called Africans that were 

brought to the Americas from Negroland Guiana, Africa were actually descendents of the 

American aboriginals of that were brought by the Dutch to Negorland, Africa in the 1700's.    

The year 1492 just marks the beginning of the horrific, evil, genocididal persecution of indigenous 

Americans.  When Christopher Colombus landed in Haiti he performed ceremonies to take 

possesion of the lands for the Catholic Church under Papal Bull Dum Diversas.  Papal Bull Dum 

Diversas was the spiritual blessing the Christian inquisitors and Christian invaders got from the 

Church which made it ok for them to rape, kill, behead, slaughter, murder and spread diseases 

among the indiginious men, women, children and babies of the people of the Caribbean and 

Americas and enslaved them for labor and indentured servitude under the Doctrine of Discovery.  

Columbus was shocked to find natives who reminded him of "ethiopians" when he arrived on the 

island of Ayiti.  The inhabitants of the island of Hispaniola was populated with black skinned 

nappy haired nubians according to Columbus's book.  In fact the Americas were populated with 

"black" people and every european explorer who "discovered" the Americas clearly notes that fact 

in their entries.  It wasn't until the reconstruction of American history was the true identity of 

indiginious natives hidden for a purpose.  Christopher Colon became the first man known in history 

to send the first POW's/slaves across the Atlantic from Haiti to Portugal.  The American colonies 

would emulate this pattern and use the Doctrine of Discovery to subjugate, marginalize, 

indoctrinate and integrate the  indiginious aboriginal autochnuous population without recompense.  

One of the best kept secrets of the corporate US state Department is that African Americans are 

not from Africa but actually descend from the indiginious aboriginal autochnuous Americans 



found here by the American colonies.  Now that Washington DC has fully colonized the true 

soverign Americans they're using their full imperialistic might on Haiti.  

In 1910 senator Nelson Aldrich Rockefeller, Abraham Andrew, Frank Vanderlip, Henry P Davison, 

Charles Norton, Benjamin Strong junior, Paul Warburg held a secret meeting to draft legislation 

for the establishment of the Federal Reserve.  This secret meeting took place on Jekyll Island off 

the coast of Georgia, at an exclusive boys club for American financiers and politicians.  The parties 

represented at this secret rendezvous (Morgans, Rockerfellers, Kuhn, Loeb&Company, 

Rothschilds, Warbugs) accounted for approximately  1/4 of the wealth of the entire world at that 

time.  Paul Warburg, who was instrumental in the creation of the Council of Foreign Relations, 

was also instrumental in the formation of this banking cartel.  Senator Nelson Aldrich Rockefeller 

was chairman of the National Monetary Commission which was a special committee created for 

the purpose of making recommendations to congress for proposed legislation to reform banking.   

A concentration of wealth referred to as the "money trust" was also a major concern as the large 

bank in New York on Wall Street was in the hands of a few.  At the time banks had broken their 

promise to guard their depositors assets.  There were runs on banks occurring all over the country 

and banks couldn't give the people their money back.  Paul Warburg led this secret cabal on this 

covert mission to successfully draft legislation for the National Monetary Commission for the 

creation of a banking system which would benefit them.  Their efforts is what led to the 

establishment of a banking cartel thru the Federal Reserve.  The term cartel doesn't only apply to 

narcotic organizations like the Medellin; they're simply a group of independently owned businesses 

which come together for the purpose of reducing or eliminating competition between themselves 

to enhance their profit margin or to secure their positions in the market.  

The Bank of England formed in 1694 was the first Central Bank and from that point forward all of 

the governments of Europe had one.  The kings and princes of Europe learned from hard experience 

that there was a limit to raising the taxes of their subjects for their escapades before they had a 

revolt on their hands.  The limit people were willing to pay in taxes was about 40-43% before 

raiding castle moats.  The same way America failed to live up to the mandates of it's Constitution, 

with the Federal Reserve Act, it also failed in it's original resolution not to have a central bank like 

those in Europe.  The establishment of the privately owned Federal Reserve system on December 

23, 1913 with the Federal Reserve Act was one of the greatest silent Coup d'états and crimes ever 

committed by a government against it's citizens in history.  With this single act the banking cartel 

basically went into partnership with the government.  The government/congress benefits because 

it recieves easy instant access to any amount of money it wants from the FED without the taxpayer 

being involved directly in the loop.  They're able to tax the American people any amount they wish 

through a complex form of inflation.  The fact that the people don't realize that they're being taxed 

makes it easy to maintain power.  It is this ability of government to acquire money from the FED 

without direct taxation of the people that makes washington DC so corrupt.    

  

The board of directors and chairman of the Federal Reserve System are appointed by the President.  

In 1921 the CFLR is founded, by Paul Warburg, to direct washington DC foreign policy.  He also 

helped draft the Act which created the FED and served as it's first governer.  One of the purposes 

of Warburg's Federal Reserve System was to keep new competitive banks from growing and 

becoming large like the one on Wall Street.  It was designed to keep control of the "money trust" 



in New York and reverse the trend of private capital formation.  The Federal Reserve System 

functions outside of U.S. Law and as a private central bank.  It's isn't an agency of the federal 

government in any shape or form but a corporation that is chartered by Congress.  Like all 

corporations it has stocks and certificates which are held by the banks within the Federal Reserve 

System.  The only thing of substance that the charter allows smaller banks to vote for are the 

interest rates within their regions.  Real currency is based on gold or silver reserves resulting in a 

market that's hard to manipulate thru expansion or contraction of the money supply from which 

the banks are covered  by congress.  In 1920 the US treasury was raided by the FED which caused 

the Great Depression and bankrupted the US corp.  Since it's creation in 1913 the Federal Reserve 

System has presided over the crashes of 1921 and 1929, the Great Depression of 1929-1939, 

recessions in the years 1953, 1957, 1969, 1975, 1981, and the stock market Black Monday in 1987.  

The Great Depression was a severe economic depression which began in the US and spread 

globally from 1929 to the mid 1930's.  On Black Tuesday the worlwide GDP fell by 15% resulting 

in the deepest longest economic downturn in US history.  American society began coming appart 

with over 1/3 of the labor force unemployed and people had no faith in the economy or political 

system.  

  

USMC Major General Smedley Butler was a two time Medal of Honor recipient and the highest 

decorated Marine Corps officer ever.   He wrote the book War Is A Racket when it became obvious 

to him that his military service was used to pave the way for corporate interests to get what they 

wanted.  “I spent 33 years and four months in active military service and during that period I spent 

most of my time as a high class muscle man for Big Business, for Wall Street and the bankers. In 

short, I was a racketeer, a gangster for capitalism. I helped make Mexico and especially Tampico 

safe for American oil interests in 1914. I helped make Haiti and Cuba a decent place for the 

National City Bank boys to collect revenues in. I helped in the raping of half a dozen Central 

American republics for the benefit of Wall Street. I helped purify Nicaragua for the International 

Banking House of Brown Brothers in 1902-1912. I brought light to the Dominican Republic for 

the American sugar interests in 1916. I helped make Honduras right for the American fruit 

companies in 1903. In China in 1927 I helped see to it that Standard Oil went on its way unmolested. 

Looking back on it, I might have given Al Capone a few hints. The best he could do was to operate 

his racket in three districts. I operated on three continents.” In 1932 US veterans held the Bonus 

March, in which they occuppied Washington DC requesting the government pay them a bonus due 

to them for WWI.  Gen Butler supported the protesting veterans and the request for their bonus 

pay.  Gen Smedley Butler supported Franklin D Roosevelt election campaign due to his socialist 

platform.  

  

President Franklin D Roosevelt was elected in 1933 and served until 1945.  The American 

capitalists hated President Roosevelt because he was elected on a socialist platform.  The idea that 

the government would create jobs and social programs for all racial groups fractured "Americans" 

along racial and political lines.  In 1934 a special investigative committee came to Gen Butler 

linking his name to a veterans organization associated with a plot to overthrow President Roosevelt.  

The McCormack-Dickstein Committee was a Special Committee on UnAmerican Activities on 

Nazi propaganda which was established to investigate acts of fascist sympathizers in the US during 

the early years of the Roosevelt presidency.  That is when General Smedley D. Butler exposed The 



Business Plot:  a well financed Wall St plot to organize the American Legion to March on 

Washington DC, seize the White House, overthrow the president and install the famous military 

hero as dictator.  They wanted to use this private army to seize power and install General Smedley 

Butler as leader of a fascist regime like Italy and Germany.   Both Mussollini  and Hitler were 

private individuals who seized power thru the overthrow of the government by false movements.   

  

Gen Butler was contacted by Gerald MacGuire who was utilized as the pointman for the capitalists.  

The American Liberty League was created as front organization for the "Business Plot".  They 

knew Gen Butler could raise and lead an army of 500,000 men because he was popular among 

veterans and they idolized him.  They wanted him to rouse up WWI veterans who were upset due 

to the bonus they were promised.  The journalist Paul French was hired by Gen Butler to document 

the events.  They met with Macguire several times to discuss the plot and the fascists capitalistic 

system his financial backers wanted to institute.  Major Wall St. corporations like Firestone, 

Birdseye, Colgate, General Motors, General Foods, Heinz, and US Steel were implicated in the 

"Business Plot".  The media ridiculed the allegations and called it "Fake News" and the capitalists 

individually denied existence of "The Business Plot".  The final report submitted by the 

McCormack-Dickstein Committee confirmed most of Gen Butler's testimony but never called the 

capitalists he named in the "Business Plot" to testify.  Gen Butler accused the committee of 

deliberately editing out the names of capitalists out of his testimony.  Some of the members of the 

class who were linked to the plot were Du Pont; JP Morgan; Paul Warburg.  The capititalistic class 

and their corporations had committed treason against America but President Roosevelt didn't 

prosecute anyone named in the "Business Plot" and instead used Gen Butler's revelation to 

negotiate the passage of the New Deal.  The Hamburg American Line was a shipping company 

accused of providing free passage to Germany to  American journalists willing to write favorable 

articles about Hitlers rise to power and bringing Nazi spies and pro fascists sympathiers into 

America.  The company was managed by Prescott Bush at the executive level and was part of a 

web of Nazi business interests that were all seized in 1942 under the Trading With the Enemies 

Act by the US congress.  

  

  

The Emergency Banking Act of March 9, 1933 dissolved the US Federal government.  Joint 

Resolution HJR 192 suspended the gold standard and abrogated the gold clause dissolving the 

sovereign authority of the US Republic.  With the constitutional republican form of government 

dissolved, a new form of government known as Democracy was adopted .  With this act the US 

hypothecated all of the present and future properties, assets and labor of their "subjects", the 14th 

amendment US citizen to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve, in which the 

trustees(stockholders) hold legal title.  The Federal Reserve (creditor) agreed to extend the 

corporate US government all the credit fiat currency it needed.  The US corporation(debtor) had 

to assign the private property of their US citizens as collateral against the unpayable Federal debt.  

Prior to this most Americans owned allodial titles to their property, free and clean of any liens or 

mortgages.  They also pledged the unincorporated federal territories, national parks forest, birth 

certificate and nonprofit organization as collatteral against the federal debt.  All has already been 

transferred as payment to the international bankers and Federal Reserve.  This was done because 

since washington DC has been operating under Color of Law on American land since they were 

colonies, they utilized the FED to profit off of all their property.  The Federal Reserve Banking 



Cartel became the sovereign authority and all the US citizens went from private to public property; 

legally dead; the birth certificate utilized as a death certificate with all their assets and debts in 

probate.  This is analogous to when the American colonies denationalized the indiginious 

population in order to utilize them as chattel property.  They went from private citizens to public 

property and their birth certificate denotes property and is actually a death certificate; "black" 

people were the first to be considered legally dead and their assetts held in probate by washington 

DC.  The US citizen(franchisee) was registered as a beneficiary of the trust via his/her birth 

certificate.  The entire straw man concept and how U.S. citizens are traded as stocks and 

commodity is essentially based on them never declaring the legal and monetary value of their birth 

certificates and the fraud of the corporate US serving as the legal beneficiary.   

  

The utilization of money by the FED to exploit the American people their wealth, assetts and labor 

is just a continuation of the exploitation of the indiginious population and land by an upper class 

which benefited from it the most.  After having siphoned off an enormous amount of wealth since 

the Civil War; they now siphon it from the American people thru the Federal Reserve Banking 

Cartel.  The US inc is which is located in washington DC is actually a de facto for profit corporation 

masquerading as a government with 30,000 subsidaries.  The 1940 Buck Act authorized any 

department of the federal government to create a federal area for imposition of "public salary tax".  

It also took congress, which normally only has jurisdiction over the washington dc area, and 

extended its' overlay across the continental US utilizing these federal areas.  A federal area is any 

area designated by any agency, department, or established of the federal government, this includes 

the Social Security Areas designated by the Social Security Administration, Social Security 

Nimber, any public housing area that has federal funding, a home that has a federal bank loan, a 

road that has federal funding, and almost anything that the federal government touches thru any 

type of aid. (Springfield v Kenny).  Washington DC lacks the sovereign capacity to operate in Haiti 

with impunity the way it does.  William Grider author of Secrets of the Temple states in his book 

that the FED has always acted against the public interest and proves that it was designed to do that 

from the very beginning:  "At the time the conventional wisdom in Congress was that the 

government institution would finally harness the money trust, disarm its powers and establish 

broad democratic control over money and credit. The results were nearly the opposite. The money 

reforms enacted in 1913 in fact helped to preserve the status quo, to stabilize the old order. Money 

center bankers would not only gain dominance over the new central bank but would also enjoy 

new insulation against instability and their own decline. Once the Fed was in operation the steady 

diffusion of financial power halted. Wall Street maintained its dominant position and even 

enhanced it."  

The Washington DC Banking Cartel and the elite secret societies behind them are covertly  

working to undermine US citizens and readying them for the day that they will wrench away their 

few remaining freedoms.  The soulless corporate nation which began as American colonies has 

never changed but disguised itself from the populace after their failure to rid themselves of it.  

Colonization of the planet continues as the wealth of the many continues to be siphoned off by the 

1% to be further utilized to enslave humanity to the whims of their will.  The accumulation of this 

wealth has surpassed material gain and is utilized to purchase power in building their new world 

order.  They are spending it to acquire control over the power centers of society by buying control 

over politicians, political parties, television networks, cable networks, newspapers, magazines, 



publishing houses, wire services, motion picture studios, universities, labor unions, church 

organizations, trade associations, tax-exempt foundations, multi-national corporations, boy scouts, 

girl scouts etc. etc...  The DC Banking Cartel is accomplishing this consolidation of power into the 

hands of the few with fiat currency!Washington DC are the leaders of a "free world" being operated 

by coporate governance with independent agencies which operate covertly regardless of the wish 

of the people.  It's a machine utilized to profit off of people as property in a myraid of ways as 

possible.  With a clandestine apparatus exploiting, watching, listening and spying on citizens; 

which answer to the will of bankers and elite class only; threatened by a potentially rebellious 

populace which they're unnacountable to as the soverign volition of man is comprimised.  

  

  

For the Record:      Constitutional Crisis  

     

The Ottawa Initiative on Haiti was a conference hosted by Canada that took place on January 31 

to February 1 2003, at Meech Lake, Quebec (a federal government resort near Ottawa) to decide 

the future of Haiti's government, though no Haitian government officials were invited. The 

conference was attended by Canadian, French, U.S. and Latin American officials.  This is appropro 

to the Berlin Conference of 1881 where European nations gathered in order to carve the wealth of 

Africa up for themselves.  The US is no longer operating in a sovereign capacity under the 

Constitutional Republic yet with the assistance of Canada and France under  the Ottawa Initiative 

have been amending the 1987 Constitution of Haiti in order to steal the Natural Resources of Haiti. 

The world renown Haitian scientist Dr. Daniel Mathurin, was the first person to write, speak and 

educate the Haitian people about Haiti's natural resources.  There is evidence that the United States 

found oil in Haiti decades ago and due to the geopolitical circumstances and big business interests 

of that era made the decision to keep Haitian oil in reserve for when Middle Eastern oil had dried 

up.  These deposits are declared strategic reserves of the United States of America which is illegal 

because Haiti is a cooperative nation and it's resources are owned by the people.  The Va Co owns 

most of what we now call USA and any lands up to 100 miles offshore including Bermuda and 

most of the caribbean except Haiti.  The US which operates under the Doctrine of Discovery has 

claimed Hait's natural resources for itself under the Monroe Doctrine.  Haiti's oil deposits valued 

at 200 billion were discovered by world renkown Haitian scientist Dr. Daniel Mathurin and are 

declared U.S. strategic reserves.  It is a violation of International Law; Soveriegnty of Nations; the 

Haitian Constitution; and UN charter art 2 point 1 for US to claim Haiti's Natural Resources for 

itself.  The US occupation of Haiti is hidden behind a humanitarian invasion of MINUSTUH,  

DynCorps Int, NGO’s, Duvalierists and UN in order to destroy Haiti and steal it's Natural 

Resources.  The US is subject to customary international law and to the Principles of the 

Nuremberg Charter.  

  

Washington DC is responsible for the establishment of a kakistocracy in Haiti and have been 

working to undermine the sovereign independence of Haiti since it's inception in violation of the 

Geneva Convention, Magne Carta, the Nuremberg Charter, The UN Declaration of the Rights of 

the Child, the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights, Tort Law, Gross Negligence.  For every 

right there is a remedy, where there is no remedy, there is no right.  The nature of the reparation 



to be made for the breach of UNSCR 940; UNSCR 1542; UNSCR 1892 and international 

obligations in conformity with Article 36(2) of the Statute of that Court:  

  

A. UNSCR 940 “Uphold  Democracy” code name Dragon's Blood was actually a clandestine 

incursion by Washington DC for the utilization of Haiti as a drug transshipment point.  What makes 

this matter even worse is that Washington DC policy kept Haiti in a state of poverty while they 

made billions therefore Haiti calls for; the immediate end to their 26 year occupation and 

immediate withdrawal of  Dyncorp Int/US; payment of 250 billion dollars to Haiti by Washington 

DC for this use.    

  

B. The covert use of HAARP by DynCorp Int and U.S. Southern Command SOUTHCOM 

during Complex Command and Control Emergency Relief Drills on January 11 2010 which caused 

the 7.2 earthquake resulting in 300,000 deaths and leaving millions homeless in Haiti.  Even the 

remote possibility of the clandestine use of HAARP as a Weapon of Mass Destruction by the US 

on unsuspecting populations needs to be investigated and regulated by the UN.  

  

C. Immediate Injunctive Relief on the Government of Haiti, President Moise and his 

administration for the illegal use and misappropriation of Petrocaribe funds.  President Moise 

illegaly used Petrocaribe money to start-up his export business Agritrans S.A. and  purchase a 

banana plantation for smuggling drugs.  Ex president Michel Martely gave 27 million of 

Petrocaribe funds and a land grant of 1,000 acres to Jovenel Moise for Agritrans S.A,.  The 

Clintons brought the Tet Kale Party to power in Haiti through fraudulent elections in order to 

maintain a Narco-State placed during operation "Uphold  Democracy”.  

  

D. The prosecution of UN Special Envoy to Haiti William J Clinton for the misappoppriation 

of 14 billion in IHRC funds.  The UN is responsible for the return of these missing funds to Haiti 

under the Doctrine of Superior.  Therefore 50 billion dollars in restitution to the government of the 

Republic of Haiti by Washington DC/UN for all the damages it has caused to Haiti since the 

earthquake of 2010.  

  

E. The presence of cholera in Haiti is due to the US/UN occupation which allowed Dyncorp 

Int to contract Nepalese soldiers, who spread the epidemic.  This follows their pattern of 

destruction in Haiti since the beginning of their occupation.  For this violation and the resulting 

casualties Haiti demands 1 billion in reparations from DynCorp Int.  

  

F. A Human Rights Commission to investigate atrocities committed by the Washington DC 

backed government/Duvalier regime against the Fanmi-Lavalas Party during their 26 year 

occupation.  

  

G. The immediate end to the Washington DC/UN occupation of Haiti and an Independent 

Haiti Reconstruction Commission led by the author of this document, USMC Vet Marc Pierre, and 

funded by the UN which will work to help Haiti recover from Jan 12, 2010 and establish a true 

stable government of the people of.  

  



This declaration is effective immediately  

This declaration shall be valid for a period of 50 months and shall be understood to be tacitly 

renewed for like periods, unless withdrawn not less than 6 months before the expiry of any 

such period by notice given to the Secretary General of the United Nations.  

  

            Done in New York, 17 October 2018  

            For the Republic of Haiti  

  

            ________________________________  

   

              

  

  

  

  


